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1.

CEO’S FOREWORD

In 2019, while celebrating the 40th anniversary of the founding of the People’s Republic,
fund transfer by mobile phone number made further strides in reform and opening-up.
Under the backdrop of China’s continuous financial market opening-up, Standard
Chartered successfully completed various tasks and delivered on the targets set at the
beginning of the year by seeking synergy between its own network and business
strengths and Chinese clients’ banking needs.
In 2019, the Chinese economy made remarkable achievements despite challenges
related to lower growth, proactive restructuring and lingering spill over effects of
previous stimulus measures. National GDP grew by 6.1% to reach close to CNY 100
trillion. Per capita GDP surpassed the milestone of USD 10,000. The economic
structure continued to improve with domestic consumption contributing to 89% of the
growth and playing a key role in stabilizing the economy. In 2019, actual usage of
foreign investments grew by 5.8% overall and by 25.6% for the high-tech sector in
particular. China’s ranking in the World Bank’s Global Business Environment Report
for 2020 jumped from 46th to 31st, which proves that China remains highly attractive
to foreign investments. Despite trade frictions, China’s total imports and exports
volume still increased by 3.4% and continued to be world number one. In addition,
financial sector opening-up has been speeding up: a slew of initiatives to deepen the
opening-up of modern services including financial services was announced in July
2019; 11 measures to further open-up the financial sector were mapped out in August;
revised Regulations on Foreign-funded Insurance Companies and Regulations on
Foreign-funded Banks were promulgated in October.
The financial performance of Standard Chartered Bank China (“SCB China” or “the
Bank”) maintained a good momentum in 2019 with all segments, products and
branches achieving fast growth. We also saw a steady inflow of new-to-bank customers,
laying a solid foundation for future development. Total assets reached CNY234.9
billion by year-end, up 9% year-on-year. Operating income was up 5% year-on-year to
CNY6.91 billion. Operating expenses increased by 27% to CNY5.2 billion largely due
to higher loan impairment as a result of enhanced loan provision ratio and increased
general and administrative expenses.
In 2019, we further consolidated leading positions on the wholesale banking side. For
instance, as the foreign bank with most business licenses, we obtained foreign
exchange inquiry and clearance qualification for the inter-bank market and was
designated by PBOC as one of the only two Loan Prime Rate (LPR) quotation foreign
banks. Our application to become a member of Shanghai Futures Exchange was
approved and we continued to lead in panda bond underwriting, inter-bank bond
market, Bond Connect and completed the first cross-border conversion of GDR under
Shanghai-London Connect. In supply chain finance, we signed a Memorandum of
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Understanding (MOU) with LinkLogis and completed the first deal; major progress was
made in supporting sustainable development of quality companies’ supply chain
finance via WeChain.
Supporting the Belt & Road Initiative and small, medium and micro-sized companies
have long been Standard Chartered’s strategy and unique strengths. In April 2019, our
Group Chairman, Group CEO and GCNA CEO participated in the 2nd Belt & Road
Forum for International Cooperation. Group Chairman was the only foreign bank
representative at the Belt & Road CEO Conference and delivered a speech. We signed
agreements with Sinosure and China EXIM Bank to strengthen cooperation along the
Belt & Road. We are also the first UK financial institution to sign the “Green Investment
Principles for the Belt and Road”. We proudly led the financing of two new-generation,
eco-friendly container ships for SITC International, held our signature Belt & Road forums
in Beijing and Chengdu respectively and multiple outbound roadshows along the Belt &
Road markets. In 2019, we achieved double-digit increase in both the outstanding
balance of loans to small, medium and micro-sized companies as well as the number
of such companies that we bank with. A dedicated cash management team was
established within Business Banking. New Business Banking sub-branches were
opened in Jinan and Wuhan to provide all-round financial services to SMEs in more
cities and their surrounding areas. In July, we became the only foreign bank this year
to win the Best Microfinance Product in China by Asian Banker.
On retail banking side, in alignment with the government’s strategic steps, we extended
mortgage loan business to Guangzhou, Huizhou and Zhongshan in the Greater Bay
Area to meet Hong Kong residents’ needs of purchasing properties in the mainland.
We further digitized our services by enabling online FCY-CNY conversion and fund
transfer by mobile phone number. Such efforts helped us clinch the World’s Best
Consumer Digital Bank in Asia Pacific 2019 by Global Finance in August. To cater for
customers’ demand for better value proposition and more diversified products, we’ve
been constantly developing innovative wealth management products and were recognized
by Shanghai Securities News for our “Outstanding WM Brand” and “Innovative WM
Excellent Products” in 2019.
New grounds were broken as we continue to forge our technology strengths. SC Venture
set up its Shanghai eXellerator Lab in August and a “China Innovation Challenge” was
kicked off thereafter. Four “intrepreneur” teams won the China Challenge Dragon’s Den
recently and will proceed into idea incubation. We worked with Ant Financial to launch
blockchain-enabled cross-border remittance and end-to-end, real time, straight-through
processing for personal loans. We joined hands with NetsUnion Clearing Corporation
(NUCC) to complete the first cross-border RMB fund clearing transaction with overseas ewallet. Up till now we’ve opened more than 100 Application Programming Interface (APIs).
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What also makes 2019 a very special year for Standard Chartered is that we had the
privilege to participate in or witness a series of very important events, which
underscores our long-term, unswerving commitment to the China market. In November,
Group CEO Bill Winters attended the New Economy Forum in Beijing and joined a
meeting with President Xi Jinping as the only representative from a foreign commercial
bank. In April, Standard Chartered PLC Board Meeting was successfully held in
Shanghai. Taking this opportunity, our Board members and some Group Management
Team members further deepened their understanding of and commitments to the
China market through external meetings with government officials, clients and partners
in Shanghai and some other cities. Standard Chartered Group held the world’s first
ever Belt & Road Relay, in which 8 staff athletes ran shoulder to shoulder with our
clients, partners and community runners across 44 markets to promote the Belt & Road
Initiative and people-to-people bond. Furthermore, we launched our brand-new
community program—“Futuremaker”—to provide more learning and development
opportunities to university students so that they can have a better chance to succeed
in innovation or starting their own businesses. Once again, we participated at the China
International Import Expo, where we debuted "Cross-border Trade Accelerator” and
showcased our leading products and insights into top-of-mind matters.
In 2019, the Bank was laurelled with a number of awards from the government, industry
organization and the media. These include the Shanghai Financial Innovation Award
by Shanghai Municipal People’s Government; Best Bank for Sustainable Finance by
Global Finance; Best Green Financial Institution by Yicai; Excellent Financial Service
Institution by 21st Century Business Herald; Foreign Bank of the Year by the Paper;
Best Service Provider for Fintech Partner by the Asset; Best foreign bank for Belt &
Road Initiative by Global Finance; Best Global Offshore RMB Bond Bookrunner by
Caixin; Best Trade Finance Foreign Bank by Trade Finance; Consumer Service Bank
of the Year and Wealth Management Service of the Year by Jiemian; Top Human
Resource Management Award by 51 Job and Best Practice of Poverty Reduction by
China Banking Association.
Our hard work and bright ideas were translated into abundant fruits and wonderful
memories in 2019. 2020 is going to be yet another very unusual year. The COVID-19
outbreak at the beginning of the year will bring some impact to the Chinese economy
and accelerate the revolution of some business models and service approaches. Its
cross-border spreading has brought more uncertainties to the global economy.
Decisive and aggressive control measures taken by the Chinese government,
bolstered by nationwide solidarity, have proved effective in curbing the disease. Now
we are seeing orderly resumption of business activities. Under the guidance of the
government and our regulators, SCB China quickly mapped out and activated
comprehensive business continuity plans and took various protective measures. While
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protecting the health of our colleagues and clients, we are also continuing to provide
high-quality financial services to clients and customers in multiple formats and offering
relief programs to those under short-term stress due to the COVID-19. Standard
Chartered Bank and its staff globally lived our brand promise of Here for Good by
actively donating money to purchase medical supplies and protective equipment for
doctors and nurses fighting at the forefront against the COVID-19.
Standard Chartered’s long-cherished mission is to drive commerce and prosperity
through our unique diversity. We are positive about China’s development in the long
run and will leverage on this prospect to seek our own development. Under the general
background that China is continuing to push ahead reform and opening-up,
championing openness and inclusiveness in the world economy, we face enormous
opportunities in both the domestic and overseas markets in relation to the Belt & Road
Initiative, Greater Bay Area, RMB internationalization, opening of the bond market,
cross-border trade, green and sustainable finance and the booming of SMEs. We will
continue to live our valued behaviour of Doing the Right Thing, Better Together and
Never Settle in capitalizing on our international network and business strengths to
provide our clients with high-quality products and services and accompany them
though their journeys of growth.

Jerry Zhang
Executive Vice Chairman
& Chief Executive Officer
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2019, total assets of SCB China were RMB234.9 billion, up 9%
compared to 31 December 2018. The increase was mainly from the strong momentum
of loans and advances to customers and higher placements with financial institutions.
The liquidity coverage ratio was 280% as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018:
233%), above the regulatory requirement of 100%. High quality liquid assets amounted
to RMB45.2 billion as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: RMB45 billion). The
net cash outflow in the next 30 days was RMB16.1 billion as at 31 December 2019,
RMB3.2 billion lower than same period last year.
The capital adequacy ratio (CAR), tier 1 CAR and common equity tier 1 CAR were
15.8%, 15.1% and 15.1% respectively as at 31 December 2019, above the regulatory
minima of 10.5%, 8.5% and 7.5%.
As at 31 December 2019, the regulatory non-performing loan balance stood at
RMB965 million (31 December 2018: RMB707 million), the regulatory non-performing
loan ratio increased to 1.17%, 19 bps higher than that of 2018 (31 December 2018:
0.98%). The regulatory loan provision ratio and the regulatory non-performing loan
coverage ratio stood at 2.39% and 204% respectively at 31 December 2019 (31
December 2018: 1.63% and 166%).

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Profit before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB1,706 million,
31% lower than that of 2018 (2018: RMB2,457 million), impacted by a higher loan
provision ratio and non-performing loan coverage ratio requirements. Underlying profit
before tax would be 5% lower YOY if normalising the impact from enhanced loan
provision ratio and non performing loan coverage ratio requirements.
Operating income rose 5% to RMB6,911 million (2018: RMB6,555 million), mainly
attributable to gains from financial markets products. General and administrative
expenses increased by 7% to RMB3,960 million (2018: RMB3,709 million).
SCB China reported a credit impairment loss of RMB1,196 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB332 million), mainly due to the enhanced loan provision
ratio and non-performing loan coverage ratio requirements.
The average return on assets was 0.6% (2018: 0.9%), and the average return on equity
was 6.1% (2018: 9.5%).
www.sc.com/cn
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APPROPRIATION TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE AND GENERAL RISK
RESERVE
SCB China appropriated an amount of RMB140 million, representing 10 per cent of
profit after income tax for 2019 to the statutory surplus reserve in accordance with
relevant regulations and its Articles of Association.
It also appropriated RMB469 million to the general risk reserve, as part of shareholders’
equity. The accumulated general risk reserve was RMB2,557 million as at 31
December 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of SCB China (“the Bank”) has responsibility for the execution of the
Shareholder’s decisions and the overall management of the Bank. The Board also has
responsibility for the preparation and approval of matters such as the business strategy
of the Bank, corporate governance structure, capital management, financial reporting,
internal control, major engagements, delegation of authority and the monitoring, and
appointment of Senior Management.
The Board of the Bank held four regular meetings on 28 February, 23 April, 28 August
and 15 November respectively during 2019. Written resolutions were passed by the
Board during the year. The Bank’s Senior Management reported to the Board on
various matters including business performance, risk and compliance on a regular
basis. Moreover, the Bank’s corporate governance matters such as the Bank’s strategy,
matters related to risk management, financial budget, appointment of external auditor
and so forth were discussed and deliberated.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Bank were as follows:
Chairman of the Board
Benjamin Hung
Executive Directors
Jerry Zhang
Xie Wen
Dickson Lee
Non-executive Directors
John Tan
Norman Lyle
Independent Directors
Eddy Fong
Wang Jun
Wang Yuan
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors are appointed by the Shareholder with a term of office of no more than
three years for non-executive and executive directors, and no more than two years for
independent directors respectively. Directors may be re-appointed upon expiry of their
term. The tenure of the independent directors is subject to a maximum term of six years.
The remuneration of the independent directors is determined by the Shareholder.

THE COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD AND THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES
Executive Committee
The Committee shall exercise all the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Bank in
relation to the day to day management, operation and control of the business of the
Bank in conformity with manuals, policies and procedures of the Standard Chartered
Group adopted by the Bank from time to time to the extent that they are relevant to the
business of the Bank; discuss and review all significant strategic initiatives which
impact the Bank and provide the country perspective to the relevant business units as
well as to the Bank’s Board of Directors for their review and approval before such
initiatives are implemented; sub-delegate to committees or individuals aspects of the
conduct of the business on terms and conditions specified in such sub-delegation to
the extent the Committee deems necessary and appropriate; establish, review and
agree changes as appropriate to the membership and terms of reference of any subcommittees of the Committee; review the progress of the business against plan at each
regular meeting and report on such progress to each quarterly meeting of the Board of
Directors; establish and maintain proper and effective systems of financial, operational
and management control for the business, and supervise the control and monitoring of
risks including compliance to ensure, amongst other things, conformity with all
statutory and regulatory requirements in force from time to time; ensure that effective
measures are in place for ensuring senior executives are fit and proper and for talent
identification and development; review the results and performance of the Bank;
produce to the next Board Meeting all minutes of the meetings of the Committee;
review the Committee’s terms of reference from time to time and propose to the Board
of Directors any changes that the Committee considers appropriate.
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Audit Committee
The Committee was approved by the Board in Q3 2019 and had its first meeting in Q4
2019. The Committee shall review the Bank’s internal financial controls, risk status and
internal control systems and report to the Board on these; keep under review the
appropriateness of the accounting policies and consider changes to these to reflect
any revision in Standard Chartered Group’s accounting standards or international
accounting standards; review statutory accounts, financial statements and other
relevant circulars to the Shareholder; consider the auditors’ report and discuss any
findings and other matters arising from the external auditors’ reports; in relation to the
external auditors, make recommendations to the Board in relation to their appointment
or dismissal, and discuss the nature and scope of their audit; review the resources,
scope, authority, operations and findings of the Country Audit function and to receive
reports from the Country Head of Audit and any relevant Group Internal Audit reports;
review the Committee’s terms of reference from time to time and propose to the Board
any changes that the Committee considers appropriate.
Board Risk Committee
The Committee was approved by the Board in Q3 2019 and had its first meeting in Q4
2019. The Committee shall review reports and recommendations regarding the Bank’s
overall risk appetite, and make recommendations thereon to the Board for its approval;
monitor the Bank’s risk profile and its consistency with risk appetite; review the
appropriateness and effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management systems and
controls; consider the implication of changes proposed to regulations and legislation
that are material to the Country’s risk appetite, risk exposure and management of risk;
in relation to proposed strategic transactions involving material acquisitions or
disposals (those requiring Board approval), consider and advise the Board on the due
diligence undertaken focusing particularly on the risk aspects and implications for risk
appetite; provide guidance on the organization and implementation of the overall
requirements for the fraud prevention work in the Bank according to local regulatory
requirement; consider and examine such other matters as the Board requires or the
Committee considers appropriate, or which are brought to its attention, and to make
recommendations or reports to the Board accordingly; report quarterly to the Board on
its considerations of the above matters, and make recommendations as appropriate;
review its terms of reference from time to time and propose to the Board any changes
it considers appropriate.
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Related Party Control Committee
The Committee shall identify the related parties of the Bank (“related parties”) in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and report to the Board as
appropriate and to the regulatory authorities regularly; formulate policy and procedures
to ensure that transactions with related parties (“related party transactions”) are
managed in accordance with applicable laws, regulations and the commercial
principles of fairness and equality; review material related party transactions and
propose them for the Board’s approval; document all material related party
transactions reviewed and/or approved by the Committee or the Board; produce to the
next Board meeting all minutes of the meetings of the Committee; review the
Committee’s terms of reference from time to time and propose to the Board any
changes that the Committee considers appropriate.
Remuneration Committee
The Committee shall propose and provide advice to the Board the adoption of Standard
Chartered PLC’s remuneration framework and policies as its own, subject to country
laws and regulations; note the implementation and operation of the Bank’s
remuneration policies and procedures and to review the findings of the annual
assurance review of remuneration conducted by internal or external audit; review the
Bank’s remuneration policy to ensure continued compliance with country laws and
regulations from time to time; approve the framework for the identification of employees
whose actions have material risk impacts on the risk exposure of the Bank (identified
material risk takers) in line with the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
Commission (“CBIRC”) guidelines; review the compensation of senior management
and identified material risk takers in line with the CBIRC guidelines; have authority to
seek independent professional advice where deemed necessary to help fulfil its
obligations, which will be arranged by the Bank’s Performance, Reward and Benefits
team upon request; review the Bank’s remuneration disclosures based on relevant
country law and regulations; review any remuneration matters raised by regulators and,
if appropriate, discuss the significant concerns with the Board for escalation; perform
any other duties and responsibilities as guided in the applicable rules and regulations;
review the Committee’s terms of reference from time to time and propose to the Board
any changes that the Committee considers appropriate.
Consumer Rights Protection Committee
The Committee was approved the Board in Q1 2019 and had its first meeting in Q2
2019. The Committee shall decide on the strategy, policy and target in relation to
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consumer rights protection; guide and ensure the management’s due establishment
and effective execution of rules and procedures in relation to consumer rights
protection; review relevant reports from management quarterly; review the appraisal
result or opinion given by regulators to the Bank in relation to consumer rights
protection; review the Committee’s terms of reference from time to time and propose
to the Board any changes that the Committee considers appropriate.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
As of 31 December 2019, our Independent Directors (“INEDs”) are Wang Jun, Wang
Yuan and Eddy Fong. All INEDs of the Bank have attended Board and Board
Committees (where they hold a position as the chair or member) meetings in 2019.
INEDs all performed their duties independently in accordance with relevant laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association to protect the overall interests
of the Bank. No INED abused his/her rights or power to seek personal benefits or
impair the interests of the Bank. All INEDs have devoted sufficient time and attention
to the duties of an INED to the Bank. In addition, all INEDs have devoted no less than
15 working days in relation to their duties and responsibilities in the Bank in 2019.

SUPERVISOR
As at 31 December 2019, the Supervisor of the Bank is Jake Williams.
The Supervisor is responsible for the review of all documents submitted to the Board;
monitors whether there may exist any non-compliance for the deed of board members
regarding the Articles of Association and policies of the Bank and relevant regulations
for the banking industry, and makes proper recommendations to the Shareholder. The
Supervisor is also responsible to supervise Senior Management of the Bank.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
The Audit Committee passed a resolution on 6 March 2020 to appoint Ernst & Young
Hua Ming Certified Public Accountants as the external auditor of the Bank for the year
of 2020.

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

11

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT
The Internal Audit department of the Bank is an independent department. The Head of
Audit is appointed by the Board and directly reports to the Audit Committee. The
Internal Audit department provides independent investigation and assessment that
regulations, business standards, policies and procedures are being complied with.
Where necessary, corrective action is recommended to the relevant departments.

SHAREHOLDER MEETING
No Shareholder meeting is required.

REMUNERATION POLICY
Approach to Remuneration
The Bank’s approach to performance, reward and benefits is consistent with our risk
management framework and facilitates the delivery of its strategy and values. The
Bank’s approach to remuneration is underpinned by:
•

Well-structured governance framework. The Standard Chartered PLC (“SC
Group”) Remuneration Committee has oversight of remuneration-related
policies, is responsible for formulating the remuneration principles and
governance framework and making remuneration decisions. The China
Remuneration Committee adopts SC Group's remuneration policies and
establishes the local remuneration framework, and ensures they are properly
and effectively delivered in China.

•

Clearly defined Performance Management Framework. The framework
ensures employees have clear objectives and receive ongoing feedback
throughout the year. Individual employees’ remuneration outcome is tied
to individual performance, business performance and SC Group performance.
The Bank’s aim is to ensure our employees to deliver long-term sustainable
growth in the interests of shareholder.

Remuneration Structure Design and Management
SCB China’s annual performance review and remuneration review process aligns
with the Group protocol. This is to ensure they properly and effectively reflect the
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SCB China and SC Group’s performance, the achievement and value behaviour as
well as the risk, control and conduct behaviour for each individual.
Our remuneration structure contains fixed compensation and variable compensation,
including benefits.
•

Fixed compensation includes base salary and allowance(s) (applies to
selected employees)

•

Variable compensation includes annual performance bonus, where the actual
pay-out will be determined based on employee’s achievement, value behaviour
as well as the risk control and conduct behaviour. The factors in scope include
SC Group performance, business area or function performance, and the
individual performance. We also reinforce the linkage between risk control and
conduct and the employee code of conduct with the final performance bonus
pay-out. The level of variable compensation will be adjusted according to a
series of factors such as SC Group performance, SCB China performance, risk
and financial affordability.
On top of these, we provide benefits which include the national statutory benefit
and the additional benefits offered by the Bank.

Our variable compensation design demonstrates a multi-dimensional evaluation and a
close relationship with risk control and conduct.
•

Multiple factors to determine variable compensation. The determination of
variable compensation takes into consideration the achievement, conduct,
behaviours and values of each individual, ensuring our reward is delivered in a
way to align with SC Group’s and SCB China’s long-term sustainable growth in
the interest of shareholders through the evaluation of what was achieved and
how it was achieved.

•

Variable compensation deferral framework. We followed the variable
compensation deferral framework stated below to reinforce the linkage between
remuneration structure and sound risk management. The Bank ensures that
the multi-year control of variable compensation is closely linked with SC Group’s
long- term performance, compliance and risk management.

SC Group’s deferral framework on variable compensation applies to all frontline
employees, and middle and back office employees, identified by the qualitative criteria
(i.e. selected key roles) and quantitative criteria (i.e. level of variable compensation).
www.sc.com/cn
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Variable compensation over a predefined threshold (i.e. USD 100k) or Group Material
Risk Takers are subject to a deferral percentage ranging between 40% and 60%.
Deferred compensations are usually delivered in a combination of cash and shares
with a deferral period of three to seven years. In designing this deferral framework,
the Bank’s business model and operations as well as risk and financial management
factors were fully considered.
According to the China Material Risk Takers & TVC Deferral Framework, SCB China’s
Head Office senior management as well as branch executives are identified as China
material risk takers, with at least 40% of their variable compensation to be equally
deferred over 3 years if they meet the predefined deferral requirements.
•

Comprehensive risk adjustment. In addition to the abovementioned variable
compensation deferral framework, SC Group would also consider all the riskrelated events when determining individual variable compensation. All types of
incentive plans are subject to the Bank’s ex-post risk adjustment of
remuneration policy which enables the SC Group, in specified circumstances,
to apply in-year adjustments, malus and clawback at its discretion.

•

Independence of control functions. The variable compensation of employees
in control functions (i.e. Risk, Compliance) are determined independently from
the businesses they oversee.

•

Compliant with the rules and regulations. Our approach to remuneration complies
with remuneration-related rules and regulations established by CBIRC, Financial
Conduct Authority (“FCA”) and Prudential Regulation Authority (“PRA”).

Aggregate compensation and payment of deferred compensation
The 2019 total remuneration received by SCB China Board members, Senior
Management (excluding Board members) and Material Risk Takers (excluding Board
members and Senior Management) were CNY 23,751,747, CNY 40,952,825 and CNY
89,465,612 respectively.
According to SC Group’s deferral framework on variable compensation and China
Material Risk Takers & TVC Deferral Framework, the variable compensation for 63
employees in China are to be deferred for 2019 performance year. The upfront cash
are to be delivered in March 2020, whereas the deferred portion will be delivered based
on the defined schedule stipulated in the relevant policies.
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OVERALL SELF-ASSESSMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors and its Committees conscientiously performed their duties in
the past year. Each Committee strictly followed the roles and responsibilities
designated by the Board. Board/Committee meetings were held on a regular and timely
basis and relevant attendance were in compliance with the Articles or the applicable
Terms of References. The Board of Directors and its Committees developed policies
and reviewed implementation to ensure the stable and sustainable development of the
Bank. Under the leadership of the Board, the Bank responded effectively to the
changing economic, financial and operating environment. The Bank strictly followed
the national rules and regulations and adjusted various strategies to ensure its
development is compliant with policies and regulation requirements. Meanwhile, the
Independent Directors and Supervisor, as appointed by and responsible to the
Shareholder, provided oversight and supervision over the Board, its Committees and
Senior Management, voiced out independent opinions and ensured that each party
involved performed effectively within its respective areas of responsibility in the
Corporate Governance Framework.
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Asset & Liability
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Consumer Rights
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Executive Risk
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Board Risk
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Country Pensions
Committee

Audit
Committee

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Board of Directors

Supervisor

(as of 31 December 2019)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Related Party
Control
Committee

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chief Risk
Officer

Tim Zhai

Chief
Financial
Officer

Head of
Corporate Affairs
and Brand &
Marketing
Head of
Transaction
Banking

Jiwei Ye
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Qingdao Branch Manager
Dalian Branch Manager
Huhhot Branch Manager
Jinan Branch Manager
Taiyuan Branch Manager

Suzhou Branch Manager

Ningbo Branch Manager

Hangzhou Branch Manager

Nanchang Branch Manager

Zhengzhou Branch Manager

Shenyang Branch Manager

Harbin Branch Manager

Tianjin Branch Manager

Regional General Managers

Head of
Human
Resources

Nanjing Branch Manager

Head of
Compliance

Beijing Branch Manager

Chief
Information
Officer
(*STRA)

Shanghai Branch Manager

Chief
Operating
Officer
(*STRA)

James Wang Caroline Wang John Hong

Head of
Head of Wealth
Management Internal Audit

Carlos Xia

Board
Secretary

Maggie Fan

Kunming Branch Manager

Fuzhou Branch Manager

Foshan Branch Manager

*STRA: subject to regulatory approval

Changsha Branch Manager

Xi’an Branch Manager

Wuhan Branch Manager

Chongqing Branch Manager

Chengdu Branch Manager

Head of Legal

Daniel Liu

Zhuhai Branch Manager

Xiamen Branch Manager

Guangzhou Branch Manager

Shenzhen Branch Manager

Head of
Financial
Markets

Wesley Yang David Leung

Jessie Li
Head of Retail Banking

Jonah Shi
Assistant to CEO

Christine Gao
Head of CEO Office
Jean Lu
Head of Corporate & Institutional Banking

Jerry Zhang
Executive Vice Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer, China

Xie Wen
Head of Commercial Banking

Dickson Lee Kee Sun Tuan Daniel Qiao

(as of 31 December 2019)
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MAIN BRANCHES INFORMATION
Beijing Branch
G/F, 11F & 12/F, Standard Chartered
Tower, World Finance Centre, No.1,
East Third Ring Middle Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, 100020,
P.R.China
Tel: 010-59188828

Changsha Branch
Unit 36-39, 20th Floor, 3# Building,
HC International Plaza, No.109 Furong
Middle Road, Kaifu District, Changsha,
Hunan Province, 410008, P.R.China
Tel: 0731-88098909

Chengdu Branch
Unit 1,7-10, 18F, Tower 1, IFS, No.1,
Section 3, Hongxing Road, Jinjiang
District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province,
610021, P.R.China
Tel: 028-85282888

Chongqing Branch
35F, Chongqing International Trade
Center, No.38, Qingnian Road,
Yuzhong District, Chongqing, 400011,
P.R.China
Tel: 023-63695573

Dalian Branch
40F, 03-05 Wanda Center, No.6
Gangxing Road, Zhongshan District,
Dalian, Liaoning Province, 116001,
P.R.China
Tel: 0411-82355800

Foshan Branch
Unit 201-204, Jinan Building, No.20
Nanhai Da Dao North, Guicheng,
Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong
Province, 528253, P.R.China
Tel: 0757-63523388

Fuzhou Branch
Unit 1505, Sino International Plaza,
137 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian
Province, 350003, P.R. China
Tel: 0591-38168986

Guangzhou Branch
10/F, Hejing International Finance
Place, No.8 Huaxia Road, Zhujiang
New Town, Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, 510623, P.R.China
Tel: 020-38158395

Hangzhou Branch
Room 604, Building No.2, Hangzhou
Kerry Center, No.385 Yan'an Road,
Hangzhou, 310006, P.R.China
Tel: 0571-87365355

Harbin Branch
Unit 909, 910, 911, No.368,
Changjiang Road, Nan'gang District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
150090, P.R.China
Tel: 0451-82955600

Huhhot Branch
3rd Floor Office A, Shangri-La hotel,
No.5 Xi Lin Guo Le South Road,
Huhhot, Inner Mongolia, 010020,
P.R.China
Tel:0471-3262300

Jinan Branch
Unit 2302-A, Block 2, Yinfeng Fortune
Plaza, No.1 Long Ao West Road, Li Xia
District, Ji’Nan, Shandong Province,
250014, P.R.China
Tel: 0531-55697588

Kunming Branch
Unit 2307, 2308, 23/F, East Wing,
Master of Orient Peakford, No.1
Chongren Street, Wuhua District,
Kunming, Yunnan Province, 650032,
P.R.China
Tel: 0871-63056789

Nanchang Branch
Room 1604, Unit 1, A1 building, Green
Land Central Plaza, No.998 Hong Gu
Central Avenue, Hong Gu Tan New
district, Nanchang, Jiangxi Province,
330038, P.R.China
Tel: 0791-82077168

Nanjing Branch
Unit C & 27/F, Nanjing’s Asia Pacific
Tower, No.2 Hanzhong Road, Gulou
District, Nanjing Jiangsu Province
210005, P.R.China
Tel: 025-83763900

Ningbo Branch
Room 1802, No.168, Marriot Centre,
He Yi Road, Haishu District Ningbo,
Zhejiang Province, 315010, P.R.China
Tel: 0574-83883999

Qingdao Branch
Units 02-04a, Floor 27, Office Tower,
Shangri-La Centre, No.9, Xiang Gang
Zhong Road, Qingdao, Shandong
Province, 266071, P.R.China
Tel: 0532-66707200

Shanghai Branch
G/F, Standard Chartered Tower,
No.201, Century Avenue, Pudong New
Area, Shanghai, 200120, P.R.China
Tel: 021-50163686

Shenyang Branch
Unit 3101, 31/F, Fortune Plaza Tower
A, No.61 Beizhan Road, Shenhe
District, Shenyang, Liaoning Province,
110013, P.R.China
Tel: 024-31977998

Shenzhen Branch
11-14/F Tower A, KK Mall, No.5016
East Shennan Road, Luohu District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
518001, P.R.China
Tel: 0755-22962888

Suzhou Branch
Unit 1001-1007, International Building,
No.2 Suzhou Avenue West, Suzhou,
Jiangsu Province, 215021, P.R.China
Tel: 0512-67630198

Taiyuan Branch
Unit 2201-1 and 2202, 22F, Block 1,
No.5 Qingnian Road,
Taiyuan, Shanxi Province,
030012, P.R.China
Tel: 0351-5650218

Tianjin Branch
36/F, The Exchange Tower, No.189,
Nanjing Road, Heping District, Tianjin,
300051, P.R.China
Tel: 022-83328200

Wuhan Branch
11F 7-9 Unit, CITIC Pacific Mansion,
No.1627 Zhongshan Avenue, Jiang’an
District, Wuhan, 430014, P.R.China
Tel: 027-59353888

Xiamen Branch
Unit EFGH, 18F, International Plaza,
No.8 Lujiang Street, Siming district,
Xiamen, Fujian Province, 361001,
P.R.China
Tel: 0592-2112600

Xi'an Branch
Unit1701, 1702 & 1703, Maike
International Mansion, No.33, Tangyan
Road, High-Tech Development Zone,
Xi'an, 710075, Shanxi Province,
P.R.China
Tel: 029-63355766

Zhengzhou Branch
Unit 2403, Expo Building, 8 Business
Waihuan Road, Zhengdong New
District, Zhengzhou, Henan Province,
450046, P.R.China
Tel: 0371-89977700

Zhuhai Branch
Unit 2707-09, Yue Cai Building,
No.188, Jida Jingshan Road,
Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai,
Guangdong Province, 519015,
P.R.China
Tel: 0756-3228889

Retail Banking Service Hotline:
800-820-8088 / 400-888-8083

Commercial Banking, Corporate &
Institutional Banking Service Hotline:
800-999-0213 / (86-755) 2215-0988

Small & Medium Enterprise Banking
Service Hotline:
800-988-0018 / 400-888-8393

400-888-8293 / 800-999-0213
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Customer Complain Hotline:
400-888-8293 / 800-999-0213

SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

4.

SIGNIFICANT MATTERS

On 21 May 2019, CBIRC approved that 100% equity interests in the Bank has been
transferred from Standard Chartered Bank to Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited. After the change, Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited holds 100%
of the Bank's equity. The Bank completed the equity change on 1 June 2019 and
company registration update accordingly with Shanghai Administration for Market
Regulation on 5 June 2019.

www.sc.com/cn
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT
毕马威华振沪审字第 2000658 号

The Board of Directors of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited:
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Standard Chartered Bank (China)
Limited (“the Bank”) set out on pages 23 to 124, which comprise the Bank’s balance sheet as
at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s income statements, the Bank’s cash flow statements, the
Bank’s statement of changes in owner’s equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the Bank’s financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the Bank’s financial performance
and the Bank’s cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants (“CSAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Bank in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
毕马威华振沪审字第 2000658 号

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of such internal control necessary to enable that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with CSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with CSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
毕马威华振沪审字第 2000658 号

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)
•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on The Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG Huazhen LLP
Shanghai Branch

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Eddie Goh

Shanghai, China

Shu Ting
27 March 2020
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BALANCE SHEET

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2019

2018

6
7
8
9
10
11

16,068,948,935
5,737,011,604
37,406,781,407
8,002,524,890
4,003,214,008
93,739,340,796

26,209,990,173
12,111,668,430
16,512,265,568
8,365,209,817
11,737,450,136
78,628,667,380

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

18,618,655,671
1,059,843,198
42,515,355,410
433,459,779
691,005,808
322,380,652
1,036,522,171
5,299,940,210

23,119,951,722
543,065,558
33,330,329,160
428,658,399
122,120,097
881,045,812
3,206,979,872

234,934,984,539

215,197,402,124

Note
Assets
Cash and deposits with central bank
Deposits with financial institutions
Placements with financial institutions
Derivative financial assets
Reverse repurchase agreements
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held for trading
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Fixed assets
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Other assets
Total assets

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note

2019

2018

20
21
22
23
9
24
25
26
5(3)
27
28
29
30

15,137,388,597
16,360,229,535
19,835,669,591
9,770,099,911
3,301,512,701
140,107,792,749
508,860,358
419,567,110
707,691,165
15,309,550
5,008,750,827

104,936,813
11,633,832,821
5,138,989,919
29,497,920,041
9,786,375,944
4,270,733,648
121,576,869,915
526,663,157
388,849,800
10,584,136
6,851,604,189
3,098,285,382

211,172,872,094
----------------------

192,885,645,765
----------------------

10,727,000,000
11,433,150
133,164,826
1,312,941,353
2,556,938,702
9,020,634,414

10,727,000,000
12,873,201
77,940,334
1,173,284,188
2,087,623,768
8,233,034,868

Total owner’s equity

23,762,112,445
----------------------

22,311,756,359
----------------------

Total liabilities and owner’s equity

234,934,984,539

215,197,402,124

Liabilities
Borrowings from central bank
Deposits from financial institutions
Borrowings from financial institutions
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Salary and welfare payable
Taxes payable
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Debt securities in issue
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Owner’s equity
Paid-in capital
Capital reserve
Other comprehensive income
Surplus reserve
General risk reserve
Retained earnings

31
32
33
34
35

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of Standard Chartered
Bank (China) Limited.

Jerry Zhang
Executive Vice Chairman
& Chief Executive Officer

Dickson Lee
Chief Financial Officer

Standard Chartered Bank
(China) Limited
(Stamp)

Date: 27 March 2020
The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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INCOME STATEMENT

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note
Operating income

2019

2018

6,910,986,178

6,554,785,188

Net interest income
- Interest income
- Interest expense

37

4,550,427,860
7,366,608,987
(2,816,181,127)

4,618,111,094
7,507,370,374
(2,889,259,280)

Net fee and commission income
- Fee and commission income
- Fee and commission expense

38

1,268,371,701
1,672,397,796
(404,026,095)

1,171,739,394
1,415,129,090
(243,389,696)

Investment income
Other income
Losses from changes in fair value
Exchange gains

39
40
41
42

290,887,580
13,555,133
(65,102,972)
852,846,876

274,828,117
23,071,782
(180,025,256)
647,060,057

(5,202,417,138)

(4,085,666,848)

(46,985,210)
(3,959,760,760)
(1,195,671,168)

(45,083,761)
(3,708,669,196)
(331,913,891)

1,708,569,040

2,469,118,340

Operating expenses
Taxes and surcharges
General and administrative expenses
Credit impairment losses

43
44

Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

281,096
(3,079,757)

Profit before income tax
Less: Income tax expenses

1,705,770,379
45

Net profit

(309,198,734)
1,396,571,645
----------------------

716,893
(12,979,150)
2,456,856,083
(444,073,275)
2,012,782,808
----------------------

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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INCOME STATEMENT

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
(1) Item that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
1. Changes in fair value of own
credit risk
(2) Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
1. Changes in fair value of other
debt investments
2. Credit impairment loss of other
debt investments
3. Reserve from cash flow hedging
instruments
Total comprehensive income for the year

46

2019

2018

55,224,492

206,996,311

(32,099,859)

(27,235,186)

80,257,236

240,044,853

515,419

396,790

6,551,696
---------------------1,451,796,137

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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(6,210,146)
---------------------2,219,779,119

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net cash received from deposits with central
bank and deposits with financial institutions
Net cash received from borrowings from
central bank
Net cash received from placements with
financial institutions
Net cash received from customer deposits
and deposits from financial institutions
Net cash received from borrowings from
financial institutions
Interest, fee and commission received
Other cash received relating to operating
activities
Sub-total of cash inflows
Net cash paid for borrowings from
central bank
Net cash paid for loans and advances to
customers
Net cash paid for financial investments
Net cash paid for customer deposits and
deposits from financial institutions
Net cash paid for borrowings from financial
institutions
Net cash paid for repurchase agreements
Interest, fee and commissions paid
Cash paid to and for employees
Cash paid for all types of taxes
Other cash paid relating to operating
activities

2018

2,605,098,549

11,453,613,116

-

2,000,000,224

3,312,013,160

4,424,087,508

12,978,581,527

-

11,995,615,675
9,328,824,266

8,971,072,255

876,336,185

1,886,287,869

41,096,469,362
---------------------

28,735,060,972
----------------------

(2,000,000,224)
(14,667,626,850)
(8,751,284,184)
-

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from operating activities

2019

47(1)

(5,155,613,785)
(3,911,502,656)
(1,122,324,937)

(1,120,000,000)
(2,956,353,715)
(2,315,164,439)
(863,802,976)

(7,028,049,554)
(4,759,273,668)
(2,627,620,070)
(2,130,172,041)
(755,190,855)

(2,255,236,320)

(2,590,010,594)

(34,929,468,708)
--------------------

(30,079,758,160)
----------------------

6,167,000,654
--------------------

(1,344,697,188)
----------------------

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 (continued)
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note

2019

2018

-

411,217

----------------------

411,217
----------------------

Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets and other assets
Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other assets

(115,861,505)

Sub-total of cash outflows

(115,861,505)
(92,713,103)
---------------------- ----------------------

Net cash flows from investing activities

(115,861,505)
(92,301,886)
---------------------- ----------------------

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from certificates of
deposit in issue
Sub-total of cash inflows
Cash paid for debt securities in issue
Cash paid for lease liabilities

-

2,287,922,000

----------------------

2,287,922,000
----------------------

(6,935,940,280)
(213,091,113)

Sub-total of cash outflows

(7,149,031,393)
(1,117,742,205)
---------------------- ----------------------

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

799,841,305
---------------------47(2)

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

47(3)

(298,050,939)

www.sc.com/cn

(161,766,792)
---------------------(2,716,508,071)

57,699,677,611

60,416,185,682

57,401,626,672

57,699,677,611

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.
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(3,405,664,205)
-

(7,149,031,393)
(3,405,664,205)
---------------------- ----------------------

Net cash flows from financing activities
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(92,713,103)
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10,727,000,000

-

11,433,150

(1,440,051)

-

133,164,826

55,224,492

-

-

55,224,492
-

77,940,334

1,312,941,353

139,657,165

-

139,657,165

-

1,173,284,188

Surplus
reserve

2,556,938,702

469,314,934

469,314,934

-

-

2,087,623,768

General risk
reserve

9,020,634,414

787,599,546

(469,314,934)

(139,657,165)

1,396,571,645
-

8,233,034,868

Retained
earnings

23,762,112,445

1,450,356,086

-

-

1,451,796,137
(1,440,051)

22,311,756,359

Total owner’s
equity

----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- -----------------

-

-

-

34

35

(1,440,051)

12,873,201

-

10,727,000,000

Other
comprehensive
income

----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- -----------------

Capital
reserve

33
32

Note

Paid-in
Capital

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Sub-total of 1 to 3

1. Total comprehensive income
2. Share-based payment
3. Profit distribution
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Appropriation for general risk
reserve

Changes in equity for the year

Balance as at 1 January 2019

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Statement of changes in owner’s equity
for the year ended 31 December 2019

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
OWNER’S EQUITY
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10,727,000,000

12,873,201

1,384,150

-

-

35
-

-

-

34

77,940,334

206,996,311

-

-

206,996,311
-

(129,055,977)

(131,553,621)
2,497,644

Other
comprehensive
income

1,173,284,188

201,278,281

-

201,278,281

-

972,005,907

972,005,907
-

Surplus
reserve

2,087,623,768

4,445,545

4,445,545

-

-

2,083,178,223

2,083,178,223
-

General risk
reserve

Total owner’s
equity

8,233,034,868

1,807,058,982

(4,445,545)

(201,278,281)

2,012,782,808
-

6,425,975,886

22,311,756,359

2,221,163,269

-

-

2,219,779,119
1,384,150

20,090,593,090

6,536,386,103 20,198,505,663
(110,410,217)
(107,912,573)

Retained
earnings

----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- -----------------

1,384,150

-

33
32

11,489,051

The notes on pages 31 to 124 form part of these financial statements.

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Sub-total of 1 to 3

1. Total comprehensive income
2. Share-based payment
3. Profit distribution
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Appropriation for general risk
reserve

Changes in equity for the year

10,727,000,000

Balance as at 1 January 2018 after
adjustment

11,489,051
-

Capital
reserve

----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- ----------------- -----------------

10,727,000,000
-

Note

Paid-in
Capital

Balance as at 1 January 2018
Add: Changes in accounting policies

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Statement of changes in owner’s equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN
OWNER’S EQUITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
1

General information
Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited (“SCB China” or the “Bank”) is a wholly-owned
foreign bank incorporated in Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China, by Standard
Chartered Bank registered in the United Kingdom (“SCB UK”). The parent of the Bank
has been changed from SCB UK to Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
(“SCB HK” or the “Parent”) on 1 June 2019 and SCB HK is wholly-owned by Standard
Chartered PLC (“SC Group”).
With the approval of the former China Banking and Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”,
now China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission or “CBIRC”) on 22 December
2006, Standard Chartered Bank, in accordance with the Regulation of the People’s
Republic of China on the Administration of Foreign Funded Banks (“the Administrative
Regulation”) and the Implementation Rules of the Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China on the Administration of Foreign Funded Banks (“the Implementation Rules”),
transformed its Shanghai Branch, Shenzhen Branch, Xiamen Branch, Qingdao Branch,
Tianjin Branch, Beijing Branch, Nanjing Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Suzhou Branch,
Chengdu Branch, and Zhuhai Branch (“former China Branches”) into SCB China, a
wholly-owned foreign bank invested solely by Standard Chartered Bank. In the process
of this transformation, all the assets, rights and obligations of the former branches were
transferred to the Bank on 1 April 2007 (cut-off date). At the same time, relevant assets,
liabilities, and operating funds of the former branches were transferred to the Bank at
book value as at the cut-off date accordingly. The Bank obtained a Financial License
issued by the CBRC on 20 March 2007 and a Business License for Enterprise (Qi du hu
zong zi No. 043866) (Municipal Bureau) issued by the Shanghai Administration of
Industry and Commerce on 29 March 2007. The Bank’s registered capital was
RMB6,227,000,000. The cut-off date for transforming the former branches into the Bank
was 1 April 2007. The Bank formally commenced operations on 2 April 2007. SCB HK
has acquired 100% share of the Bank from SCB UK following the approval from CBIRC
dated 21 May 2019 and the signed share transfer agreement between SCB HK and SCB
UK. This transition has been completed by 1 June 2019.
The Bank obtained the CBRC’s “Foreign Bank Approval” (CBRC Letter [2009] No. 39)
on 26 March 2009 and increased the paid-in capital by RMB 2.5 billion equivalent in
freely convertible currency. The Bank obtained another “Foreign Bank Approval” (CBRC
Letter [2011] No. 262) on 28 September 2011 and increased the paid-in capital by RMB
2 billion, after which the Bank’s paid-in capital increased to RMB 10,727,000,000. Due
to parent company change, the Bank obtained an updated Business License (Unified
Social Credit Code: 913100007989619932) from the Shanghai Administration for Market
Regulation on 5 June 2019. As stated in the Bank’s Business License, the Bank’s
operating period is indefinite, and Zhang Xiaolei is the legal representative. The scope
of operations for the Bank is: partial or the full range of foreign currency business and
RMB business approved by relevant regulators, including receiving deposits from the
general public; granting short-term, medium-term and long-term loans; handling
acceptances and discounting of negotiable instruments; buying and selling government
bonds and financial bonds; buying and selling foreign currency securities other than
stocks; providing letter of credit services and guarantees; handling domestic and foreign
settlements; buying and selling foreign currencies and acting as an agent for the
purchase and sale of foreign currencies; acting as an agent for insurance products;
engaging in inter-bank lending; engaging in bank cards business; providing safe deposit
box services; providing credit information services and consultancy services; and other
businesses approved by the CBRC.

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

31

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

General information (continued)
Up to 31 December 2019, the Bank has established 28 branches and 68 sub-branches
in Shanghai, Shenzhen, Xiamen, Qingdao, Tianjin, Beijing, Nanjing, Guangzhou,
Suzhou, Chengdu, Zhuhai, Chongqing, Hangzhou, Nanchang, Dalian, Ningbo, Hohhot,
Wuhan, Xi’an, Foshan, Changsha, Jinan, Fuzhou, Zhengzhou, Taiyuan, Kunming,
Harbin and Shenyang.

2

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of going concern.
(1)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises or referred to as China
Accounting Standards (“CAS”) issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF”). These
financial statements present truly and completely the Bank’s financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and the Bank’s financial performance and the Bank’s cash
flows for the year then ended.

(2)

Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31 December.

(3)

Functional currency and presentation currency
The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi, and these financial statements are
presented in Renminbi. Functional currency is determined by the Bank on the
basis of the currency in which major incomes and costs are denominated and
settled.

3

Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates
(1)

Translation of foreign currencies
When the Bank receives capital in foreign currencies from investors, the capital is
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other
foreign currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated to Renminbi at
the rates that approximate the spot exchange rates on the dates of the
transactions.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi at
the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
at historical cost in foreign currencies are translated to Renminbi using the
exchange rate at the transaction date.

32

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

www.sc.com/cn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments
(a)

Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance sheet when
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value.
For financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
any related directly attributable transaction costs are charged to profit or loss.
For other categories of financial assets and financial liabilities, any related
directly attributable transaction costs are included in their initial costs.

(b)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
- Classification of financial assets
The classification of financial assets is generally based on the business
model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics. On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), or at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition
unless the Bank changes its business model for managing financial
assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the
following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
- Classification of financial assets (continued)
A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the
Bank may irrevocably designate a financial asset as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
The business model refers to how the Bank manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The Bank’s business model assesses
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling financial assets or both. The Bank assesses the business model
for managing the financial assets according to the facts and based on the
specific business objective for managing the financial assets determined
by the Bank’s key management personnel.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, the Bank considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as
the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular
period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin. The Bank also assesses whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows.

34

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

www.sc.com/cn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (continued)
- Subsequent measurement of financial assets
- Financial assets at amortised cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
shall be recognised in profit or loss when the financial asset is
derecognised, through the amortisation process or in order to
recognise impairment gains or losses.
- Debt investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, impairment and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
- Financial assets at FVTPL
These financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, are recognised in profit or loss unless the financial
assets are part of a hedging relationship.

(c)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at FVTPL, financial guarantee
liabilities or amortised cost.
- Financial liabilities at FVTPL
A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-fortrading (including derivative financial liability) or it is designated as such
on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, the
fair value changes resulting from own credit risk movement are
recognised in other comprehensive income, other net gains and losses
(including interest expenses) are recognised in profit or loss.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(c)

Classification
(continued)

and

subsequent

measurement

of

financial

liabilities

- Financial guarantee liabilities
Financial guarantees are contracts that requires the Bank to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.
Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers, the fair value
of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is initially recognised
as deferred income in “Other liabilities”.
Subsequent to initial recognition, deferred income related to financial
guarantee is amortised in profit or loss in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in Note 3(14). A financial guarantee liability is measured
at the higher of: the amount of the loss allowance and the amount initially
recognised less the cumulative amount of income. The amount of the loss
allowance is determined in accordance with impairment policies of
financial instruments (see Note 3(2)(f)).
- Financial liabilities at amortised cost
These financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
(d)

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally presented separately in
the balance sheet, and are not offset. However, a financial asset and a
financial liability are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet when both of the following conditions are satisfied:
- The Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to net off the recognised
amounts;
- The Bank intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(e)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial asset is derecognised when one of the following conditions is met:
- the Bank’s contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire;
- the financial asset has been transferred and the Bank transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; or
- the financial asset has been transferred, although the Bank neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, it does not retain control over the transferred asset.
Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety meets the criteria for
derecognition, the difference between the two amounts below is recognised
in profit or loss:
- the carrying amount of the financial asset transferred measured at the
date of derecognition;
- the sum of the consideration received from the transfer and, when the
transferred financial asset is a debt investment at FVOCI, any cumulative
gain or loss that has been recognised directly in other comprehensive
income for the part derecognised.
The Bank derecognises a financial liability (or part of it) only when its
contractual obligation (or part of it) is extinguished.

(f)

Impairment
The Bank recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI;
- financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments
Financial assets measured at fair value, including financial assets held for
trading and derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(f)

Impairment (continued)
Measurement of ECLs
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Bank in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive).
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period (including extension options) over which the Bank is
exposed to credit risk.
12 months expected credit losses (Stage 1)
A financial instrument of which the credit risk has not significantly increase
since initial recognition. The amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses is recognized as loss allowance.
Significant increases in credit risk (Stage 2)
A financial instrument with a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but is not considered to be credit-impaired. The amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses is recognized as loss allowance.
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Bank compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the balance sheet date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Bank
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort, including forward-looking information.
In particular, the following information is taken into account:
- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their contractually due
dates;
- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);
- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and
- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Bank.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(f)

Impairment (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (Stage 2) (continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk ratings.
The Bank assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:
- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full,
without considering the recourse actions to be taken by the Bank such as
realising security (if any is held);
- the internal credit rating of financial assets is 13 or 14;
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3)
A financial instrument is considered to be credit-impaired as at statement of
financial position date. The amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses
is recognized as loss allowance.
A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
- for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, the Bank having granted to the borrower a concession that would
not otherwise consider;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or
- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(f)

Impairment (continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECL
ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to reflect changes in the
financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Bank recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account, except for debt investments that are measured at FVOCI,
for which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income.
Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially
or in full) when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. This is generally the case when the Bank
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Bank’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due.
Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

(g)

Hedge accounting
Hedge accounting is a method which recognises in profit or loss (or other
comprehensive income) the gains and losses of the hedging instrument and
the hedged item in the same accounting period(s) to reflect the impact of risk
management activities.
Hedged items are the items that expose the Bank to risks of changes in fair
value or future cash flows and that are designated as being hedged and can
be reliably measured. The Bank’s hedged items include fixed rates
securities, floating rate mortgages and floating rate deposits, etc.
A hedging instrument is a designated financial instrument whose changes in
fair value or cash flows are expected to offset changes in the fair value or
cash flows of the hedged item.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(2)

Financial instruments (continued)
(g)

Hedge accounting (continued)
A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that
is attributable to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction and could affect profit and loss. The
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be
an effective hedge is recognised directly in shareholders’ equity as a
separate component. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognised in profit or loss.
A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an
identified portion of such an asset, liability or firm commitment that is
attributable to particular risk and could affect profit and loss. The gain or loss
from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised in profit
or loss. The gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk
adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised in profit or
loss.

(3)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-restricted balances with
central banks, banks and non-bank financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

(4)

Reverse repurchase agreements and repurchase agreements
The cash advanced or received is recognised as amounts held under repurchase
agreements in the balance sheet. Assets purchased under reverse repurchase
agreements are booked off balance sheet in memorandum accounts. Assets sold
under repurchase agreements continue to be recognised in the balance sheet.
The income or expense arising from reverse repurchase agreements and
repurchase agreements is amortised over the period of the respective transaction
using the effective interest method and is included in interest income or expense.

(5)

Fixed assets and construction in progress
Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the Bank for use for operational
and administrative purposes with useful lives over one year.
Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see Note 3(8)). Construction in progress is stated in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see Note 3(8)).
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(5)

Fixed assets and construction in progress (continued)
The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises the purchase price, related taxes,
and any directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition
for its intended use. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when it is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided against construction-in-progress.
The subsequent costs including the cost of replacing part of an item of fixed assets
are recognised as assets when it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the costs will flow to the Bank, and the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day maintenance of fixed assets are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of fixed asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
The cost of a fixed asset, less its estimated residual value and accumulated
impairment losses, is depreciated using the straight line method over its estimated
useful life.
The estimated useful lives and residual rates of each class of fixed assets are as
follows:

Buildings
Office and other equipment

Estimated
useful lives

Estimated rate of
residual value

5 - 50 years
3 - 5 years

0%
0%

Useful lives, residual value and depreciation methods are reviewed annually.
(6)

Leases
A contract is lease if the lessor conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset to lessee for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(6)

Leases (continued)
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, the Bank assesses whether:
- the contract involves the use of an identified asset. An identified asset may be
specified explicitly or implicitly specified in a contract and should be physically
distinct, or capacity portion or other portion of an asset that is not physically
distinct but it represents substantially all of the capacity of the asset and thereby
provides the customer with the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from the use of the asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution
right throughout the period of use, then the asset is not identified;
-

the lessee has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use;

-

the lessee has the right to direct the use of the asset.

For a contract that contains more separate lease components, the lessee and the
lessor separate lease components and account for each lease component as a
lease separately. For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components,
the lessee and the lessor separate lease components from non-lease components.
For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the lessee allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components. The lessor allocates the consideration in the
contract in accordance with the accounting policy in below.
Where a contract has two or more performance obligations, the Bank determines
the stand-alone selling price at contract inception of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation in the contract and allocates the
transaction price in proportion to those stand-alone selling prices. The Bank
recognises as revenue the amount of the transaction price that is allocated to each
performance obligation.
As a lessee
The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date (less any lease incentives received), any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

43

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(6)

Leases (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line method. If the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option by the end of the lease term,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
underlying asset. Otherwise, the right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use
asset or the end of the lease term. Impairment losses of right-of-use assets are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 3 (8).
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank’s
incremental borrowing rate.
A constant periodic rate is used to calculate the interest on the lease liability in
each period during the lease term with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or
included in the cost of assets where appropriate. Variable lease payments not
included in the measurement of the lease liability is charged to profit or loss or
included in the cost of assets where appropriate as incurred.
Under the following circumstances after the commencement date, the Bank
remeasures lease liabilities based on the present value of revised lease payments:
- there is a change in the amounts expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee;
- there is a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or a rate used to determine those payments;
- there is a change in the assessment of whether the Bank will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option, or there is a change in the exercise
of the extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of lowvalue assets. The Bank recognises the lease payments associated with these
leases in profit or loss or as the cost of the assets where appropriate using the
straight-line method over the lease term.

(7)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 3(8)).
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(7)

Intangible assets (continued)
For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, its cost less estimated residual value
and accumulated impairment losses is amortised using the straight-line method
over its estimated useful life. At the balance sheet date, the Bank’s intangible
assets consisted of software, which is amortised over three to five years.

(8)

Impairment of non-financial assets
At each balance sheet date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts based on
internal and external sources of information to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment for the following assets:
-

Fixed assets and construction in progress
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Other assets-leasehold improvements

If any indication exists that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated.
An asset group is comprised of assets directly related to cash generation and is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set of asset groups) is the
higher of its fair value (see Note 3(9)) less costs to sell and its present value of
expected future cash flows.
An asset’s fair value less costs to sell is the amount determined by the price of a
sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction, less the costs that are directly
attributable to the disposal of the asset. The present value of expected future cash
flows of an asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows, estimated to
be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its ultimate disposal, to their
present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.
If the result of the recoverable amount calculation indicates the recoverable
amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is recognised as an
impairment loss and charged to profit or loss for the current period. A provision for
impairment of the asset is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to
an asset group reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the asset group on a
pro rata basis. However, the carrying amount of an impaired asset will not be lower
than the greatest amount of its individual fair value less costs to sell (if
determinable), the present value of expected future cash flows (if determinable)
and zero.
Once an impairment loss is recognised, it cannot be reversed in a subsequent
period.

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

45

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(9)

Fair value measurement
Unless otherwise specified, the Bank measures fair value as follows:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.
When measuring fair value, the Bank takes into account the characteristics of the
particular asset or liability (including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that market participants would
consider when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date, and uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data and other information are available to measure fair value. Valuation
techniques mainly include the market approach, the income approach and the cost
approach.

(10) Employee benefits
(a)

Short-term employee benefits
Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security contributions such as
medical insurance, work injury insurance, maternity insurance and housing
fund, measured at the amount incurred or accrued at the applicable
benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liability as the employee provides
services, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss or included in the cost
of assets where appropriate.

(b)

Post-employment benefits - defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic of
China, the Bank participated in a defined contribution basic pension
insurance plan in the social insurance system established and managed by
government organisations. The Bank makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by
the government. Basic pension insurance contributions are recognised as
part of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss as the related services
are rendered by the employees.

(c)

Share-based payments
Share-based payments transactions in the Bank include cash-settled and
equity-settled share-based payment.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(10) Employee benefits (continued)
(c)

Share-based payments (continued)
- Equity settled share-based payment
Where the Bank uses shares or other equity instruments as consideration
for services received from the employees, the payment is measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted to the employees, in
accordance with CAS 11 - Share-based Payments. If the equity
instruments granted to employees vest immediately, the fair value of the
equity instruments granted is, fully recognised as costs or expenses on
the grant date, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. If the
equity instruments granted do not vest until the completion of services
over a period of time, or until the achievement of a specified performance
condition, the Bank recognises an amount during the vesting period,
based on the fair value of the best estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest with a corresponding increase in the capital
reserve.
When the Bank receives services but has no obligation to settle the
transaction because the relevant equity instruments are issued by the
Bank’s ultimate parent or its subsidiaries, the Bank also classifies the
transaction as equity-settled.
- Cash-settled share-based payments
Where the Bank receives services from employees by incurring a liability
to deliver cash or other assets for amounts that are determined based on
the price of shares or other equity instruments, the service received from
employees is measured at the fair value of the liability incurred, in
accordance with CAS 11 - Share-based Payments. If a cash-settled
share-based payment vests immediately, the Bank recognises the cost or
expense and the liability incurred on the grant date. If a cash-settled
share-based payment does not vest until the completion of services over
a period of time, or until the achievement of a specified performance
condition, the Bank recognises the cost or expense as the services are
received, with a corresponding increase in liability, at an amount equal to
the fair value of the liability based on the best estimate of the outcome of
vesting.
When the Bank receives services and has the obligation to settle the
transaction, but the relevant equity instruments are issued by the Bank’s
ultimate parent or its subsidiaries, the Bank classifies the transaction as
cash-settled.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(10) Employee benefits (continued)
(d)

Termination benefits
When the Bank terminates the employment with employees before the
employment contracts expire, or provides compensation under an offer to
encourage employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a provision is
recognised with a corresponding expense in profit or loss at the earlier of the
following dates:
- When the Bank cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination
benefits because of an employee termination plan or a curtailment
proposal;
- When the Bank has a formal detailed restructuring plan involving the
payment of termination benefits and has raised a valid expectation in
those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to
implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by
it.

(e)

Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits represent the Bank’s payment obligation
in exchange for services rendered by employees, which is computed based
on certain standards. The obligation is settled after twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period.

(11) Income tax
Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity (including other
comprehensive income).
Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the applicable tax rate on
taxable income for the year, plus any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities are offset if the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset them and also intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases, which
include the deductible losses and tax credits carry forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(11) Income tax (continued)
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured based on the expected
manner of recovery or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates that are expected to be applied in the period when the
asset is recovered, or the liability is settled.
The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet
date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefits will be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if all of the
following conditions are met:
- the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and
- they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either:
- the same taxable entity; or
- different taxable entities which intend either to settle the current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
(12) Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a contingency if the Bank has
a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows.
In terms of a possible obligation resulting from a past transaction or event, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain
future events or a present obligation resulting from a past transaction or event,
where it is not probable that the settlement of the above obligation will cause an
outflow of economic benefits, or the amount of the outflow cannot be estimated
reliably, the possible or present obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(13) Fiduciary activities
The Bank acts in a fiduciary capacity as a custodian, trustee or an agent for
customers. Assets held by the Bank on behalf of customers are excluded from the
financial statements as the risks and rewards of the assets reside with the
customers.
Entrusted lending is the business where the Bank enters into entrusted loan
agreements with customers, whereby the customers provide funds (the “entrusted
funds”) to the Bank, and the Bank grants loans to third parties (the “entrusted
loans”) at the instruction of the customers. As the Bank does not assume the risks
and rewards of the entrusted loans and the corresponding entrusted funds,
entrusted loans and funds are recorded as off-balance sheet items at their principal
amounts and no impairment assessments are made for these entrusted loans.
Wealth management is the business where the Bank enters into agreements with
customers, whereby the customers provide funds to the Bank, and the Bank
invests the funds into assets held by either the Bank or third parties. The Bank
fulfils its management duty and receives relevant fees in accordance with these
agreements and does not take on any risks and rewards related to the funds and
investments under management. The funds and investments under management
are recorded as off-balance sheet items.
(14) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Bank, the revenue and costs can be measured reliably and
the following conditions are met:
(a)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the profit or loss based on the duration and
the effective interest rate. Interest income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium or other differences between the initial carrying amount
of an interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated using
the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
of the financial instrument.
Interest on the impaired financial assets is recognised using the interest rate
used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the related
impairment loss.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(14) Revenue recognition (continued)
(b)

Fee and commission income
The Bank collects fees and commissions by providing various services to
customers. The fee and commission income recognized by the Bank reflects
the amount of consideration expected to be received by the Bank in providing
services to its customers, and revenue is recognized when the performance
obligations in the contract are fulfilled.
(i)

The Bank satisfies a performance obligation over time if one of the
following criteria is met:
- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Bank’s performance as the Bank performs;
- the customer can control the service provided during the Bank’s
performance; or
- the Bank’s performance does not provide a service with an
alternative use to it and the Bank has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

(ii)

or otherwise, the Bank recognises revenue at the point in time at which
the customer obtains control of services.

(15) Government grants
Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of monetary or non-monetary
assets from the government to the Bank except for any capital contributions from
the government.
A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and that the Bank will comply with the conditions attaching
to the grant.
If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount that is received or receivable. If a government grant is in the form
of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at its fair value.
A government grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred income
and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the useful life of the
asset as other income or non-operating income. A grant that compensates the
Bank for expenses to be incurred in the future is recognised initially as deferred
income, and released to profit or loss or offset against the related expenses in the
periods in which the expenses are recognised. Otherwise, the grant is recognised
in profit or loss or offset against the related expenses immediately.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting estimates (continued)
(16) Profit distribution
Distributions of profit proposed in the profit appropriation plan to be approved after
the balance sheet date are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date
but disclosed in the notes separately.
(17) Related parties
If a party has the power to control, jointly control or exercise significant influence
over another party, or vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control and joint control from another party, they are considered to be
related parties. Related parties may be individuals or enterprises.
(18) Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identified based on operating segments which are
determined based on the structure of the Bank’s internal organisation,
management requirements and internal reporting system after taking materiality
into account. Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into a single
operating segment if the segments have the same or similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of each segment’s products
and services, the nature of production processes, the types or classes of
customers for the products and services, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
(19) Significant accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and uncertainties
involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.
Significant accounting estimates include depreciation and amortisation of assets
such as fixed assets - Note 3(5), intangible assets - Note 3(7); provision for
impairment of various types of assets (see Notes 3(2), (8) and (12)); deferred tax
assets - Note 3(11) and fair value measurement of financial instruments - Note
3(9).

4

Changes in accounting policies and their effects
Description and reasons for changes in accounting policies
In 2019, the Bank has adopted the following revised accounting standards issued by the
MOF recently:
- CAS No.21 – Leases (Revised) (“New leases standard”)
- Notice on Revision of the 2019 Illustrative Financial Statements (Caikuai [2019] No.6)
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Changes in accounting policies and their effects (continued)
Description and reasons for changes in accounting policies (continued)
The Bank has adopted the above revised accounting standards since 1 January 2019
and made corresponding adjustments in relations to revised accounting policies.
The changes to the accounting policies that reflect adoption of above standards are
summarised in Note 3.
Impact of the adoption of above accounting standards is as follows:
(a)

New leases standard
New leases standard has revised CAS No.21 – Leases issued by the MOF in 2006
(“previous leases standard”). The Bank has applied new leases standard since 1
January 2019 and has adjusted the related accounting policies.
New leases standard refines the definition of a lease. The Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease in accordance with the definition in new
leases standard. For contracts existed before the date of initial application, the
Group has elected not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at the
date of initial application and surplus.
•

As a lessee
Under previous leases standard, the Bank classifies leases as operating or
finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transfers
significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset to the Bank. The Bank has no finance lease.
Under new leases standard, the Bank recognises right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases (except for short-term leases and leases of lowvalue assets which are accounted for using practical expedient).
For a contract that contains lease and non-lease components, the Bank
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
The Bank has elected to recognise the cumulative effect of adopting new
leases standard as an adjustment to the opening balances of retained
earnings and other related items in the financial statement in the initial year
of application. Comparative information has not been restated.
For leases classified as operating leases before the date of initial application,
lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid lease
payments.
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Changes in accounting policies and their effects (continued)
Description and reasons for changes in accounting policies (continued)
(a)

New leases standard (continued)
•

As a lessee (continued)
The Bank also uses the following practical expedients to account for leases
classified as operating leases before the date of initial application:
- accounted for the leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months
of the date of initial application as short-term leases;
- applied a single discount rate to leases with similar characteristics when
measuring lease liabilities;
- excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use assets;
- determined the lease term according to the actual implementation or other
updates of options before the date of initial application if the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease;
- accounted for lease modifications before the initial year of application
according to the final arrangement of the change under new leases
standard without retrospective adjustments.

•

Effect of the application of new leases standard since 1 January 2019 on
financial statements
When measuring lease liabilities, the Bank discounted lease payments using
its incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019. The weighted-average rate
applied by the Bank is 4.74%.
The total operating lease commitment as at
31 December 2018
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases
Option of renewal to be exercised which is reasonably
determined
Lease payments under new leases standard
(undiscounted)
Present value discounted using the Bank’s incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019
Lease liabilities under new leases standard at
1 January 2019
Difference between the present value and lease
liabilities above
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Changes in accounting policies and their effects (continued)
Description and reasons for changes in accounting policies (continued)
(a)

New leases standard (continued)
•

Effect of the application of new leases standard since 1 January 2019 on
financial statements (continued)
As at 1 January, right-of-use assets of the Bank amount to RMB
888,977,051, lease liabilities of the Bank amount to RMB 888,977,051 and
total impact on prior retained earnings is zero.

(b)

Presentation of financial statements
The Bank has prepared financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
in accordance with the financial statement format specified in Caikuai [2018] No.36
and adopted new leases standard on the Bank balance sheet after adjustments in
accordance with Caikuai [2019] No.6.

5

Taxation
The Bank is subject to the following major taxes:
(1)

VAT
The Bank has accrued output VAT mostly at a tax rate of 6% of taxable income,
and pays VAT calculated based on output VAT less input VAT.

(2)

Income tax
The income tax rate applicable to the Bank is 25% (2018: 25%).

(3)

Taxes payable
2019

2018

Income taxes payable
VAT and surcharges payable
Other taxes payable

286,734,910
106,395,296
26,436,904

229,536,057
139,983,388
19,330,355

Total

419,567,110

388,849,800
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Cash and deposits with central bank
Note
Cash on hand
Statutory deposit reserves
Surplus deposit reserves
Foreign exchange risk reserve
Accrued interest

(1)
(2)
(3)

Total
(1)

63,708,837
9,252,985,863
5,441,770,170
1,306,116,698
4,367,367

71,580,376
10,591,901,166
14,610,395,005
930,362,309
5,751,317

16,068,948,935

26,209,990,173

2019

2018

9.5%

12%

5%

5%

(2)

The surplus deposit reserves placed with the PBOC are mainly for settlement
purpose.

(3)

A foreign exchange risk reserve is based on 20% of the nominal value of all forward
RMB sale derivative contracts.

Deposits with financial institutions

Deposits with other banks
- Domestic
- Overseas
Sub-total
Deposits with non-bank financial institutions
- Domestic
Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
Less: Credit loss provision
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2019

2018

3,037,882,790
2,454,981,204

4,605,226,011
7,256,182,152

5,492,863,994
----------------------

11,861,408,163
----------------------

198,559,922
----------------------

159,892,933
----------------------

5,691,423,916

12,021,301,096

45,603,832

90,377,567

5,737,027,748

12,111,678,663

(16,144)

Net book value

56

2018

Statutory deposit reserves represent reserve deposits placed with the People’s
Bank of China (the “PBOC”) in accordance with the Administrative Regulation and
relevant regulations, which are not available for use in the daily business. As at
31 December, the statutory deposit reserve ratios are as follows:

Deposit reserve ratios for RMB deposits
Deposit reserve ratios for foreign
currency deposits

7

2019

5,737,011,604
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Placements with financial institutions
2019

2018

Placements with other banks
- Domestic
- Overseas

3,369,151,852
34,033,419,792

4,808,473,060
11,673,067,696

Sub-total

37,402,571,644

16,481,540,756

10,497,820

34,619,565

37,413,069,464

16,516,160,321

Accrued interest
Total
Less: Credit loss provision

(6,288,057)

Net book value

9

37,406,781,407

(3,894,753)
16,512,265,568

Derivatives
Derivatives include forward, swap, option and commodity derivative transactions
undertaken by the Bank in the foreign exchange and interest rate markets. The positions
are actively managed by the Bank through entering offsetting deals with external parties
to ensure that the Bank’s net exposures are within acceptable risk levels.
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Derivatives (continued)
As at 31 December, the notional amounts and the fair values of the Bank’s derivative
transactions are as follows:

Interest rate derivatives
- Interest rate swaps
- Interest rate options
Sub-total
Currency derivatives
- Currency forwards
- Currency swaps
- Currency options
Sub-total
Other derivatives
- Commodity derivatives
- Equity derivatives
- Others

58

Notional amount
total

2019
Fair value
assets

743,679,503,144
22,399,908,742

135,112,766
7,409,170

Fair value
liabilities
(339,505,150)
(104,320)

766,079,411,886
142,521,936
(339,609,470)
------------------------ ------------------------ -----------------------905,477,967,946
45,148,351,193
54,543,648,577

7,055,856,037
279,099,718
205,972,229

(7,147,228,045)
(546,029,039)
(144,837,556)

1,005,169,967,716
7,540,927,984
(7,838,094,640)
------------------------ ------------------------ -----------------------12,866,234,951
743,798,718
16,078,221,208

245,453,606
73,621,364

(253,148,189)
(4,316,029)
(1,334,931,583)

Sub-total

29,688,254,877
319,074,970
(1,592,395,801)
------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

Total

1,800,937,634,479
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Derivatives (continued)

Interest rate derivatives
- Interest rate swaps
- Interest rate options
Sub-total
Currency derivatives
- Currency forwards
- Currency swaps
- Currency options
Sub-total
Other derivatives
- Commodity derivatives
- Others

Notional amount
total

2018
Fair value
assets

509,551,582,556
17,919,464,580

108,547,761
15,516,565

Fair value
liabilities
(150,170,732)
(1,977,696)

527,471,047,136
124,064,326
(152,148,428)
------------------------ ------------------------ -----------------------795,086,231,974
49,506,235,169
58,060,705,759

7,240,238,839
399,656,846
502,749,718

(7,181,760,692)
(420,545,155)
(475,423,735)

902,653,172,902
8,142,645,403
(8,077,729,582)
------------------------ ------------------------ -----------------------4,733,751,976
10,043,137,495

94,259,686
4,240,402

(95,079,041)
(1,461,418,893)

Sub-total

14,776,889,471
98,500,088
(1,556,497,934)
------------------------ ------------------------ ------------------------

Total

1,444,901,109,509

8,365,209,817

(9,786,375,944)

The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume of outstanding transactions
at the balance sheet date. They do not represent amounts at risk.
As at 31 December 2019, the notional amounts of interest rate swaps which were treated
as hedging instruments are RMB 5,610,000,000 with fair value assets of RMB 3,598,237
and fair value liabilities of RMB 11,062,250 (2018: notional amount is RMB
9,000,000,000 with fair value assets of RMB 15,210,098 and fair value liabilities of RMB
25,592,921). The notional amounts of currency swaps which were treated as hedging
instruments are RMB 5,601,247,500 with fair value assets of RMB 72,702,895 and fair
value liabilities of RMB 17,398,822 (2018: notional amount is RMB 6,261,278,740 with
fair value assets of RMB 231,408,464 and fair value liabilities of RMB 10,167,476).
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Reverse repurchase agreements
(1)

Analysis by counterparty
2019

2018

Commercial banks
Non-bank financial institutions

3,980,200,000
88,965,910

11,690,293,000
505,938,959

Sub-total

4,069,165,910

12,196,231,959

Of which: reverse repurchase
agreements held for the
purpose of trading (Note 12)
Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
Less: Credit loss provision
Net book value
(2)

(505,938,959)

3,980,200,000

11,690,293,000

23,195,725

47,471,446

4,003,395,725

11,737,764,446

(181,717)

(314,310)

4,003,214,008

11,737,450,136

2019

2018

Policy bank bonds
Government bonds
Non-bank financial institutions bonds

3,034,700,000
945,500,000
88,965,910

9,618,785,000
2,577,446,959
-

Sub-total

4,069,165,910

12,196,231,959

Analysis by security type

Of which: reverse repurchase
agreements held for the
purpose of trading (Note 12)
Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
Less: Credit loss provision
Net book value

60

(88,965,910)
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3,980,200,000

11,690,293,000

23,195,725

47,471,446

4,003,395,725

11,737,764,446

(181,717)
4,003,214,008
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Loans and advances to customers
(1)

Analysis by distribution of corporate and individual lending

Corporate lending
- Loans
- Bills discounted
Personal loans
- Residential mortgage loans
- Personal instalment loans
Sub-total

2019

2018

77,693,347,130
2,913,987,843

62,533,962,941
3,398,707,654

16,309,378,450
5,522,767,999

16,241,466,425
5,983,588,577

102,439,481,422

88,157,725,597

Of which: loans and advances to
customers designated at fair
value through profit or loss
(Note 12)

(7,458,283,940)

(8,959,319,459)

Sub-total

94,981,197,482

79,198,406,138

735,166,887

623,738,262

Total

95,716,364,369

79,822,144,400

Less: Credit loss provision

(1,977,023,573)

(1,193,477,020)

Net book value

93,739,340,796

78,628,667,380

Accrued interest
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11

Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(2)

Analysis by distribution of industries
As at 31 December, the Bank’s loans and advances to customers by distribution
of industries is as follows:
2019
Book value
Financing, insurance, and
business services
Wholesale and retail business
Manufacturing
Real estate
Construction
Lease and commerce
Transport, storage and
communications
Electricity, gas and water
Mining
Community, social and
personal services
Others

2018
Book value

(%)

27,012,769,897
19,037,566,597
16,787,603,824
6,041,526,100
3,606,262,500
3,007,886,200

26%
19%
16%
6%
4%
3%

19,822,058,852
15,725,290,593
18,786,973,500
6,792,352,600
1,081,070,300
285,556,800

22%
18%
21%
8%
1%
<1%

1,893,622,300
647,119,000
482,925,700

2%
1%
<1%

409,345,400
765,575,800
286,573,600

<1%
1%
<1%

389,809,684
1,700,243,171

<1%
2%

401,277,172
1,576,595,978

<1%
2%

Sub-total

80,607,334,973

79%

65,932,670,595

75%

Personal loans

21,832,146,449

21%

22,225,055,002

25%

102,439,481,422

100%

88,157,725,597

100%

Sub-total
Of which: loans and advances
to customers
designated at fair
value through profit
or loss (Note 12)

(7,458,283,940)

(8,959,319,459)

94,981,197,482

79,198,406,138

735,166,887

623,738,262

Total

95,716,364,369

79,822,144,400

Less: Credit loss provision

(1,977,023,573)

(1,193,477,020)

Net book value

93,739,340,796

78,628,667,380

Accrued interest
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11

Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(3)

Analysis by security type

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans
Loans with security
- Collateralised loans
- Pledged loans
Sub-total

2018

52,739,447,214
12,313,124,382
37,386,909,826
29,262,415,193
8,124,494,633

44,938,128,177
7,652,845,713
35,566,751,707
27,196,909,281
8,369,842,426

102,439,481,422

88,157,725,597

Of which: loans and advances to
customers designated at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 12)

(7,458,283,940)

(8,959,319,459)

Sub-total

94,981,197,482

79,198,406,138

735,166,887

623,738,262

Total

95,716,364,369

79,822,144,400

Less: Credit loss provision

(1,977,023,573)

(1,193,477,020)

Net book value

93,739,340,796

78,628,667,380

Accrued interest

(4)

2019

Aging analysis for overdue loans
As at 31 December, the Bank’s aging analysis for overdue loans is as follows:
2019

Within
3 months

3 months
to 1 year

1 to 3 years

Over 3 years

Total

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans
Loans with security
- Collateralised loans
- Pledged loans

172,111,572
66,595,969
375,133,605
367,883,605
7,250,000

82,747,999
22,223,115
215,108,498
109,560,999
105,547,499

346,225,227
221,086,020
212,936,020
8,150,000

92,720,877
92,720,877
-

254,859,571
435,044,311
904,049,000
783,101,501
120,947,499

Total

613,841,146

320,079,612

567,311,247

92,720,877

1,593,952,882

Within
3 months

3 months
to 1 year

1 to 3 years

Over 3 years

Total

Unsecured loans
Guaranteed loans
Loans with security
- Collateralised loans
- Pledged loans

168,996,354
145,213,883
466,044,884
457,894,884
8,150,000

65,353,572
271,810,001
44,812,184
44,360,855
451,329

243,509,142
243,509,142
-

112,369,748
112,369,748
-

234,349,926
417,023,884
866,735,958
858,134,629
8,601,329

Total

780,255,121

381,975,757

243,509,142

112,369,748

1,518,109,768

2018

Overdue loans refer to loans, of which the whole or part of the principals or interest
were overdue.
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11

Loans and advances to customers (continued)
(5)

Movements of credit loss provision
As at 31 December 2019, movements of the credit loss provision on loans and
advances to customers are as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2019
Transfer:
- to 12-month ECL
- to lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired
- to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
Charge for the year (Note 44)
Recovery of loans written
off in previous years
Written-off during the year
Other movement
Exchange (gains) / losses
Balance at 31 December 2019

Balance at 1 January 2018
Transfer:
- to 12-month ECL
- to lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired
- to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
(Release) / charge for
the year (Note 44)
Recovery of loans written
off in previous years
Written-off during the year
Other movement
Exchange losses / (gains)
Balance at 31 December 2018

(6)

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

610,129,698

107,107,457

476,239,865

1,193,477,020

172,278,503

(167,750,786)

(4,527,717)

-

(110,755,851)

119,514,059

(8,758,208)

-

(158,136)
607,465,233

(230,053,891)
277,847,020

(239,536)

(21,198)

75,631,056
(475,882,632)
(7,841,375)
1,282,397

1,190,617,841
75,631,056
(475,882,632)
(7,841,375)
1,021,663

1,278,719,911

106,642,661

591,661,001

1,977,023,573

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

551,479,055

129,326,761

397,873,575

1,078,679,391

227,674,180

(220,679,181)

(6,994,999)

-

(41,008,919)

48,345,775

(7,336,856)

-

(11,339)
(128,187,049)
183,770
610,129,698

(131,932,647)

131,943,986

-

282,060,550

217,213,648

371,087,149

97,044,542
(345,166,950)
(9,641,957)
1,304,876

97,044,542
(345,166,950)
(9,641,957)
1,474,845

(13,801)
107,107,457

476,239,865

1,193,477,020

Restructured loans and advances to customers

Restructured loans and advances to
customers
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2018

234,275,733

366,967,615
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12

Financial assets held for trading
Note
Financial assets held for the purpose
of trading
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

2019

2018

(1)

11,026,830,188

14,016,733,256

(2)

7,458,283,940

8,959,319,459

18,485,114,128

22,976,052,715

133,541,543

143,899,007

18,618,655,671

23,119,951,722

Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
(1)

Financial assets held for the purpose of trading
Note
Investment in debt instruments:
Debt securities
Certificates of deposit
Reverse repurchase
agreements

2019

2018

(a)
(a)

8,927,555,378
2,010,308,900

11,357,197,647
2,153,596,650

10

88,965,910

505,938,959

11,026,830,188

14,016,733,256

2019

2018

7,212,153,263
2,010,308,900

4,988,653,746
3,172,220,647

1,320,681,550
295,170,965
99,549,600

1,272,645,634
3,351,350,630
725,923,640

10,937,864,278

13,510,794,297

Total
(a)

Analysis by issuers

Government
Commercial banks
Corporates and non-bank financial
institutions
Policy banks
PBOC
Total
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Financial assets held for trading (continued)
(2)

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
As at 31 December, the Bank’s financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss are as follows:
2019
Notional Amount
Loans and advances to customers
(Note 11)

7,419,832,254
2018
Notional Amount

Loans and advances to customers
(Note 11)

13

7,458,283,940

Fair Value

8,935,248,324

8,959,319,459

2019

2018

1,039,023,395

522,049,963

21,352,282

21,015,595

1,060,375,677

543,065,558

Debt investments
(1)

Analysis by deal type

Debt securities
Accrued interest
Total
Less: Credit loss provision
Net book value

66
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1,059,843,198
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13

Debt investments (continued)
(2)

Analysis by issuer

Policy banks
Corporates
Sub-total

Accrued interest
Total

2019

2018

516,985,570
522,037,825

522,049,963
-

1,039,023,395

522,049,963

21,352,282

21,015,595

1,060,375,677

543,065,558

Less: Credit loss provision

(532,479)

Net book value
(3)

-

1,059,843,198

543,065,558

Movements of credit loss provision for debt investments
12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

Balance at 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
(Note 44)

-

-

-

-

532,479

-

-

532,479

Balance at 31 December
2019

532,479

-

-

532,479

As at 31 December 2018, no credit loss provision was provided to debt
investments.
14

Other debt investments
(1)

Analysis by deal type
2019

2018

Debt securities
Certificates of deposit

38,478,748,593
3,510,228,727

28,069,161,322
4,646,870,760

Sub-total

41,988,977,320

32,716,032,082

526,378,090

614,297,078

42,515,355,410

33,330,329,160

Accrued interest
Total
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Other debt investments (continued)
(2)

Analysis by issuer
2019

2018

Policy banks
Government
PBOC
Commercial banks

17,389,802,865
15,282,885,485
8,584,373,750
731,915,220

21,293,391,565
4,512,466,257
2,263,303,500
4,646,870,760

Sub-total

41,988,977,320

32,716,032,082

526,378,090

614,297,078

42,515,355,410

33,330,329,160

Accrued interest
Total
(3)

Movements of credit loss provision for other debt investments
12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

Balance at 1 January 2019
Charge for the year (Note 44)
Exchange losses

2,310,967
686,755
471

-

-

2,310,967
686,755
471

Balance at 31 December 2019

2,998,193

-

-

2,998,193

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year (Note 44)
Exchange losses

1,781,930
527,493
1,544

-

-

1,781,930
527,493
1,544

Balance at 31 December 2018

2,310,967

-

-

2,310,967

Credit loss provision on other debt investments is recognised in other
comprehensive income without decreasing the carrying amount of financial
investments presented in the statement of financial position, and any impairment
loss or gain is recognised in the profit or loss.
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15

Fixed assets
The movement in the Bank’s fixed assets during the year is as follows:

Cost

Buildings

Office and other
equipment

Construction
in progress

Total

Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
Transfer from construction in progress
to other assets
Amounts written off / disposals during
the year

628,509,129
-

223,693,892
25,440,007

38,334,572
6,228,732

890,537,593
31,668,739

-

-

(32,386,808)

(32,386,808)

Balance at 31 December 2018
Additions during the year
Transfer from construction in progress
to other assets
Amounts written off / disposals during
the year

628,509,129
-

238,023,320
20,043,321

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2019

-

-

(11,110,579)

(40,572,923)

12,176,496
21,593,436
(5,828,201)
-

878,708,945
41,636,757
(5,828,201)
(40,572,923)

628,509,129

217,493,718

(223,504,710)
(20,270,726)

(205,811,451)
(11,547,483)

-

(429,316,161)
(31,818,209)

11,083,824

-

11,083,824

(206,275,110)
(12,979,295)

-

(450,050,546)
(29,595,480)

39,161,227

-

39,161,227

(260,391,621)

(180,093,178)

-

(440,484,799)

Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2019

368,117,508

37,400,540

27,941,731

433,459,779

Balance at 31 December 2018

384,733,693

31,748,210

12,176,496

428,658,399

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Amounts written off / disposals during
the year
Balance at 31 December 2018
Charge for the year
Amounts written off / disposals during
the year
Balance at 31 December 2019

27,941,731

(11,110,579)

873,944,578

-------------- -------------- -------------- --------------

(243,775,436)
(16,616,185)
-

-------------- -------------- -------------- --------------
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Right-of-use assets

Cost

Plant &
buildings
Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions during the year
Decrease during the year
Balance at 31 December 2019

Less: Accumulated amortization
Balance at 1 January 2019
Additions during the year
Decrease during the year
Balance at 31 December 2019

70

888,977,051
29,757,659
(48,945,971)
869,788,739
---------------------(179,962,908)
1,179,977
(178,782,931)
----------------------

Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2019

691,005,808

Balance as at 1 January 2019

888,977,051
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Intangible assets
The movement in the Bank’s intangible assets during the year is as follows:

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2018
Additions during the year
Transfer from work in
progress to intangible
assets
Amounts written off /
disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2018
Additions during the year
Transfer from work in
progress to intangible
assets
Amounts written off /
disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2019

Less: Accumulated amortization
Balance at 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Amounts written off /
disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2018
Charge for the year
Amounts written off /
disposals during the year
Balance at 31 December
2019

Software

Work
in progress

Total

227,412,981
-

28,674,419
47,209,443

256,087,400
47,209,443

5,869,566
(1,125,706)

(5,869,566)
-

232,156,841
217,479,697

70,014,296
64,909,933

42,589,120

(42,589,120)

(337,992)
491,887,666

-------------------(152,148,476)
(29,028,270)
1,125,706
(180,051,040)
(81,915,014)
123,931
(261,842,123)

92,335,109

--------------------

(1,125,706)
302,171,137
282,389,630
(337,992)
584,222,775

-------------------(152,148,476)
(29,028,270)
1,125,706
(180,051,040)
(81,915,014)
123,931
(261,842,123)

--------------------

--------------------

--------------------

Carrying amounts
Balance as at
31 December 2019

230,045,543

92,335,109

322,380,652

Balance as at
31 December 2018

52,105,801

70,014,296

122,120,097
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Deferred tax assets
The movement in the Bank’s deferred tax assets / (liabilities) during the year is as follows:

Balance
as at 1 January
2019
Unapproved loan written off /
credit loss provision
Share-based payment
Change in fair value
Other
Total

72

Balance
as at 31
December 2019

978,381,899
34,563,835
(171,848,264)
39,948,342

44,902,430
(1,929,310)
132,166,032
(1,254,628)

(18,408,165)
-

1,023,284,329
32,634,525
(58,090,397)
38,693,714

881,045,812

173,884,524

(18,408,165)

1,036,522,171

Balance
as at 1 January
2018

19

2019
Current year
Current year
increase /
increase /
decrease
decrease
charged to
recognised
profit or loss directly in equity

2018
Current year
Current year
increase /
increase /
decrease
decrease
charged to
recognised
profit or loss directly in equity

Balance
as at 31
December 2018

Unapproved loan written off /
credit loss provision
Share-based payment
Change in fair value
Other

787,041,014
34,948,051
(59,480,721)
34,332,795

191,340,885
(384,216)
(43,368,789)
5,615,547

(68,998,754)
-

978,381,899
34,563,835
(171,848,264)
39,948,342

Total

796,841,139

153,203,427

(68,998,754)

881,045,812

Other assets
2019

2018

Refundable deposits
Receivable from SC Group and subsidiaries
Precious metals
Unsettled bond receivables
Leasehold improvements
Other receivables

2,078,105,099
1,663,299,587
639,480,228
638,985,516
63,294,216
216,775,564

904,438,055
1,920,987,466
175,749,824
87,671,854
118,132,673

Total

5,299,940,210

3,206,979,872

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

www.sc.com/cn

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20

21

Borrowings from central bank
2019

2018

Borrowings from central bank

-

2,002,238,002

Of which: borrowing from central bank
designated at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 23)

-

(1,898,288,002)

Sub-total

-

103,950,000

Accrued interest

-

986,813

Total

-

104,936,813

2019

2018

Deposits from other banks
- Domestic
- Overseas

5,895,370,887
14,266,942,719

3,249,477,662
9,612,105,050

Sub-total

20,162,313,606

12,861,582,712

Of which: deposits from financial institutions
designated at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 23)

(5,097,297,231)

(1,232,978,343)

15,065,016,375

11,628,604,369

72,372,222

5,228,452

15,137,388,597

11,633,832,821

Deposits from financial institutions

Accrued interest
Total
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Borrowings from financial institutions
2019

2018

Borrowings from banks
- Domestic
- Overseas

3,286,438,000
17,507,192,539

4,719,488,162
4,077,589,843

Sub-total

20,793,630,539

8,797,078,005

Of which: borrowings from financial
institutions designated at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 23)

(4,446,909,184)

(3,677,527,956)

16,346,721,355

5,119,550,049

13,508,180

19,439,870

16,360,229,535

5,138,989,919

2019

2018

195,648,254

-

19,634,236,740

29,476,147,343

19,829,884,994

29,476,147,343

5,784,597

21,772,698

19,835,669,591

29,497,920,041

Accrued interest
Total

23

Financial liabilities held for trading
Note
Financial liabilities held for the
purpose of trading
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss

(1)

Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
(1)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are as follows:
2019
Notional Amount
Deposits from financial institutions
(Note 21)
Borrowings from financial institutions
(Note 22)
Repurchase agreements (Note 24)
Customer deposits (Note 25)
Total
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Fair Value

4,981,478,825

5,097,297,231

4,443,579,542
3,230,000,000
6,802,071,139

4,446,909,184
3,229,456,396
6,860,573,929

19,457,129,506

19,634,236,740
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Financial liabilities held for trading (continued)
(1)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss are as follows:
2018
Notional Amount
Borrowings from central bank (Note 20)
Deposits from financial institutions
(Note 21)
Borrowings from financial institutions
(Note 22)
Repurchase agreements (Note 24)
Customer deposits (Note 25)
Total

Fair Value

1,896,050,224

1,898,288,002

1,293,647,621

1,232,978,343

3,675,135,173
3,390,000,000
19,434,268,226

3,677,527,956
3,388,987,561
19,278,365,481

29,689,101,244

29,476,147,343

For financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, the changes
in fair value in current year caused by own-credit risk is RMB 42,799,812 and the
accumulated changes is RMB 77,565,114. (2018: the changes in fair value caused
by own-credit risk is RMB 36,313,581 and the accumulated changes is RMB
34,765,302.)
24

Repurchase agreements
(1)

Analysis by counterparty
2019

2018

PBOC
Policy banks

3,559,504,261
2,969,952,135

6,069,026,727
1,579,960,834

Sub-total

6,529,456,396

7,648,987,561

(3,229,456,396)

(3,388,987,561)

3,300,000,000

4,260,000,000

1,512,701

10,733,648

3,301,512,701

4,270,733,648

Of which: repurchase agreements
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
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Repurchase agreements (continued)
(2)

Analysis by security type
2019

2018

Government bonds
Policy bank bonds
Treasury bill

4,619,456,396
1,910,000,000
-

3,799,108,776
3,669,917,951
179,960,834

Sub-total

6,529,456,396

7,648,987,561

(3,229,456,396)

(3,388,987,561)

3,300,000,000

4,260,000,000

1,512,701

10,733,648

3,301,512,701

4,270,733,648

Of which: repurchase agreements
designated at fair value
through profit or loss
(Note 23)
Sub-total
Accrued interest
Total
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Customer deposits
As at 31 December, the Bank’s customer deposits are as follows:

Current accounts
- Corporate customers
- Individual customers
Sub-total
Term deposits (including call deposits)
- Corporate customers
- Individual customers
Sub-total
Other deposits
- Margin deposits
Sub-total
Of which: customer deposits designated at
fair value through profit or loss (Note 23)
Sub-total

2018

73,921,951,985
8,451,959,743

73,903,546,318
7,761,399,625

82,373,911,728
----------------------

81,664,945,943
----------------------

51,660,966,857
12,372,292,957

47,820,014,640
10,884,694,819

64,033,259,814
----------------------

58,704,709,459
----------------------

11,496,204
----------------------

43,054,291
----------------------

146,418,667,746

140,412,709,693

(6,860,573,929)

(19,278,365,481)

139,558,093,817

121,134,344,212

549,698,932

442,525,703

140,107,792,749

121,576,869,915

2019

2018
(restated)

(1)

467,307,411

463,713,337

(2)
(3)
(4)

19,023,735
11,605,361
10,923,851

18,704,323
35,042,948
9,202,549

508,860,358

526,663,157

Accrued interest
Total

26

2019

Salary and welfare payable
Note
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
- defined contribution plans
Termination benefits
Other long-term employee benefits
Total
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Salary and welfare payable (continued)
(1)

Short-term employee benefits
The movement in the Bank’s short-term employee benefits during the year is as
follows:
As at 1
January 2019

(2)

2019
Current year
accrual

Current year
payment

As at 31
December 2019

Salary, bonus and allowance
Staff welfare and benefits
Social insurances
- Medical insurance
- Injury insurance
- Maternity insurance
Housing fund
Others

380,159,214
71,360,308
5,978,845
5,372,558
90,136
516,151
6,214,970
-

1,824,020,892
48,253,805
76,048,018
68,146,335
1,157,807
6,743,876
77,979,470
23,911,749

(1,803,695,440)
(66,240,962)
(75,377,546)
(67,562,418)
(1,145,525)
(6,669,603)
(77,394,163)
(23,911,749)

400,484,666
53,373,151
6,649,317
5,956,475
102,418
590,424
6,800,277
-

Total

463,713,337

2,050,213,934

(2,046,619,860)

467,307,411

Post-employment benefits - defined contribution plans
The movement in the Bank’s post-employment benefits during the year is as
follows:
As at 1
January 2019

(3)

2019
Current year
accrual

Current year
payment

As at 31
December 2019

Basic pension insurance
Unemployment insurance
Annuity

11,508,980
316,122
6,879,221

133,020,360
3,853,019
72,850,070

(133,287,178)
(3,847,569)
(72,269,290)

11,242,162
321,572
7,460,001

Total

18,704,323

209,723,449

(209,404,037)

19,023,735

Termination benefits
The movement in the Bank’s termination benefits during the year is as follows:
As at 1
January 2019
Termination benefits

(4)

35,042,948

2019
Current year
accrual
18,497,541

Current year
payment
(41,935,128)

11,605,361

Other long-term employee benefits
2019

78

As at 31
December 2019

2018

Bonus
Less: To be settled within one year

16,762,634
(5,838,783)

13,534,760
(4,332,211)

Total

10,923,851

9,202,549
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Salary and welfare payable (continued)
(4)

Other long-term employee benefits (continued)
The movement in the Bank’s other long-term employee benefits during the year is
as follows:
As at 1
January 2019
Bonus

27

9,202,549

2019
Current year
accrual
6,053,513

(4,332,211)

As at 31
December 2019
10,923,851

Lease liabilities
31 December 2019

1 January 2019

707,691,165

888,977,051

Lease liabilities

28

Current year
payment

Provisions
As at 31 December 2019, all of the Bank’s provisions are ECL for off balance sheet
assets, the movement is as follows:
12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

Balance at 1 January 2019
Transfer:
- to 12-month ECL
- to lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired
- to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
Charge/ (release) for the year
(Note 44)
Exchange losses

7,837,965

2,746,171

-

10,584,136

Balance at 31 December 2019

13,543,668

1,765,882

-

15,309,550

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL not
credit-impaired

Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired

Total

9,725,994

2,109,445

36,808,821

48,644,260

1,245,388

(1,245,388)

-

-

643,674

-

-

-

-

-

892,959

(892,959)

-

-

(874,318)

874,318

-

-

214,618

-

-

(214,618)

5,118,329
568,733

(771,991)
24,961

Balance at 1 January 2018
Transfer:
- to 12-month ECL
- to lifetime ECL
not credit-impaired
- to lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
(Release) / charge for the year
(Note 44)
Exchange losses / (gains)

(2,802,387)
312,644

1,219,587
18,853

Balance at 31 December 2018

7,837,965

2,746,171

(643,674)
-
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(2,785,642)
2,571,024

(36,670,214)
(138,607)
-

1,560,696
3,164,718

(38,253,014)
192,890
10,584,136
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Debt securities in issue
As at 31 December, the Bank’s debt securities in issue are as follows:
Note

2019

2018

-

6,198,568,609
491,635,473

Sub-total

-

6,690,204,082

Accrued interest

-

161,400,107

Total

-

6,851,604,189

Fixed rate debt securities
Certificates of deposit

(1)

(1)

Fixed rate debt securities
The movement in the Bank’s fixed rate debt securities in issue during the year is
as follows:
As at 1
January 2019

(Settlement)/
amortised
during the year

Fixed rate debt securities
Issuance expenses

6,200,000,000
(1,431,391)

(6,200,000,000)
1,431,391

-

Total

6,198,568,609

(6,198,568,609)

-

As at 31
December 2019

The Bank issued RMB 6,200,000,000 of 3-year senior debt on 26 April 2016, with
an annual coupon rate of 3.8% and was matured in April 2019.
30

80

Other liabilities
2019

2018
(restated)

Payable to SC Group and its subsidiaries
Suspense accounts
Unsettled bond payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred income
Others

1,550,586,851
1,615,152,934
988,367,156
306,613,101
132,855,457
415,175,328

1,241,019,740
981,077,280
164,269,280
347,472,713
119,919,697
244,526,672

Total

5,008,750,827

3,098,285,382
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Paid-in capital
The Bank’s registered capital and paid-in capital as at 31 December is as follows:

Standard Chartered Bank
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited

2019
RMB equivalent

%

2018
RMB equivalent

%

-

-

10,727,000,000

100%

10,727,000,000

100%

-

-

The RMB equivalent of the paid-in capital was translated using the historical exchange
rates on the dates of the capital injections as quoted by the PBOC.
The paid-in capital has been verified by KPMG Huazhen LLP Shanghai Branch with the
related capital verification reports issued.
SCB HK has acquired 100% share of the Bank from SCB UK effective on 1 June 2019
following the approval from CBIRC and the signed share transfer agreement between
SCB HK and SCB UK. The total amount of registered capital and paid-in capital of the
Bank remains unchanged.
32

Capital reserve
The movement in the Bank’s capital reserve during the year is as follows:

Share-based payment

Share-based payment

2019

Balance at
1 January
2019

Change in
the year

12,873,201

(1,440,051)
2018

Balance at
31 December
2019
11,433,150

Balance at
1 January
2018

Change in
the year

Balance at
31 December
2018

11,489,051

1,384,150

12,873,201

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

81

33

82

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

www.sc.com/cn

Total

(2) Items that may be reclassified to
profit and loss:
1. Changes in fair value of other debt
investments
2. Credit impairment loss of other debt
investments
3. Reserve from cash flow hedging
instruments

(1) Item that will not be reclassified
to profit and loss:
1. Changes in fair value of own credit risk

(6,210,146)

6,693,522

206,996,311

396,790

1,336,435

(129,055,977)

240,044,853

(27,235,186)

Movement
in 2018

(138,247,143)

1,161,209

As at
1 January
2018

The movement in the Bank’s other comprehensive income during the year is as follows:

Other comprehensive income

77,940,334

483,376

1,733,225

101,797,710

(26,073,977)

As at
31 December
2018

55,224,492

6,551,696

515,419

80,257,236

(32,099,859)

Movement
in 2019

133,164,826

7,035,072

2,248,644

182,054,946

(58,173,836)

As at
31 December
2019
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Surplus reserve
The movement in the Bank’s surplus reserve during the year is as follows:
Note
Balance at 1 January 2018
Profit appropriation

36

972,005,907
201,278,281

Balance at 31 December 2018
Profit appropriation

36

1,173,284,188
139,657,165

Balance at 31 December 2019

35

1,312,941,353

General risk reserve
General risk preparation changes of the Bank are as follows:
Note
Balance at 1 January 2018
Profit appropriation
Balance at 31 December 2018
Profit appropriation

36

2,083,178,223
4,445,545

36

2,087,623,768
469,314,934

Balance at 31 December 2019

2,556,938,702

According to the Administrative Rules for provisions of financial enterprises (Caijin [2012]
No.20), a financial enterprise shall make a provision for risk-bearing assets. The
required ratio of general risk reserve to risk-bearing assets is 1.5%, but financial
enterprises have a five-year grace period to meet the requirement. The rules took effect
on 1 July 2012. As at 31 December 2019, The Bank’s ratio of general risk reserve to
risk-bearing assets was above 1.5%.
36

Profit appropriation
Note
Appropriation to surplus reserve
Appropriation to general risk reserve
(1)

(1)
35

2019

2018

139,657,165
469,314,934

201,278,281
4,445,545

Appropriation to surplus reserve
The Bank appropriated an amount of RMB 139,657,165 representing 10% of profit
after tax for 2019 to the statutory surplus reserve in accordance with relevant
regulations and its Articles of Association.
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Net interest income

Interest income:
Deposits with central bank
Deposits and placements with
financial institutions
Reverse repurchase agreements
Debt securities investments
Loans and advances to customers
- Personal loans
- Corporate loans
- Bills discounted
Sub-total of interest income
Interest expense:
Deposits and borrowings from
financial institutions
Repurchase agreements and
Borrowings from central bank
Customer deposits
Debt securities in issue
Lease finance cost
Sub-total of interest expense

186,188,658

230,823,753

774,998,363
189,020,416
1,150,007,153
5,066,394,397
1,407,744,835
3,535,333,682
123,315,880

915,170,617
429,459,915
1,133,999,727
4,797,916,362
1,547,640,603
2,975,369,397
274,906,362

7,366,608,987
-----------------------

7,507,370,374
-----------------------

(534,191,853)

(373,495,207)

(228,616,078)
(1,931,678,893)
(84,366,335)
(37,327,968)

(295,308,897)
(1,914,076,841)
(306,378,335)
-

4,550,427,860

4,618,111,094

2019

2018

381,739,677
221,037,277
147,777,773
106,502,405
90,843,419
724,497,245

315,227,490
187,674,321
119,013,606
85,944,956
86,002,670
621,266,047

1,672,397,796

1,415,129,090

Net fee and commission income

Fees and commission income:
Wealth management fees
Customer advisory and commission fees
Credit commitment and loan service fees
Guarantee fees
Trade finance commission fees
Others
Sub-total of fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense

(404,026,095)

Net fee and commission income

84

2018

(2,816,181,127)
(2,889,259,280)
---------------------- ----------------------

Net interest income

38

2019
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Investment income
2019

40

Gain / (losses) on financial instruments held
for trading
Gains on other debt investments
Gains on derivative financial instruments

6,318,698
93,298,167
191,270,715

(17,873,918)
39,405,430
253,296,605

Total

290,887,580

274,828,117

2019

2018

7,501,171
6,053,962

17,325,313
5,746,469

13,555,133

23,071,782

2019

2018

Other income

Government grants
Other operating income
Total

41

Losses from changes in fair value

Losses on derivatives
Gain / (losses) on financial instruments held for
trading
Net hedging losses
- Fair value (losses) / gains of hedged items
- Fair value gain / (losses) of hedging
instruments
Total
42

2018

(150,373,292)

(49,372,089)

85,401,387
(131,067)
(14,006,542)

(130,071,727)
(581,440)
22,615,645

13,875,475

(23,197,085)

(65,102,972)

(180,025,256)

Exchange gains

Exchange gains

2019

2018

852,846,876

647,060,057

The exchange gains mainly include the gains and losses on foreign currency
transactions and on foreign currency derivatives.
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44

General and administrative expenses
2019

2018

Staff cost
- Salaries, bonuses and allowances
- Staff welfare and benefits
- Others

1,841,507,557
412,004,742
42,409,290

1,790,881,903
422,277,824
58,599,335

Staff cost sub-total

2,295,921,589

2,271,759,062

Depreciation and amortization
Communication expenses
Maintenance expenses
Rental and property management expenses,
insurance and utilities
Others

318,741,668
104,352,977
98,264,992

116,314,460
72,890,550
99,233,262

81,933,427
1,060,546,107

295,185,492
853,286,370

Total

3,959,760,760

3,708,669,196

2019

2018

Credit impairment losses
Note
Balances with financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Financial guarantee contracts and
loan commitments
Total

86

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

11
13
14

2,273,397
1,190,617,841
532,479
686,755

(1,447,737)
371,087,149
527,493

28

1,560,696

(38,253,014)

1,195,671,168
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Income tax expenses
(1)

Income tax expenses
2019
Current year income tax
Current year deferred tax
Prior year deferred tax adjustment
Prior year income tax adjustment
Total

(2)

2018

488,216,079
(164,923,358)
(8,961,166)
(5,132,821)

644,171,075
(125,081,103)
(28,122,324)
(46,894,373)

309,198,734

444,073,275

Reconciliations of income tax expenses derived from accounting profits

Profit before income tax
Expected income tax expense subject to
25% tax rate
Increase / (decrease) of tax effect:
- Non-deductible expenses
- Non-taxable income
Prior year tax adjustment
Total
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2019

2018

1,705,770,379

2,456,856,083

426,442,595

614,214,021

10,810,874
(113,960,748)
(14,093,987)

8,724,406
(103,848,455)
(75,016,697)

309,198,734

444,073,275
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Other comprehensive income (net of tax)
2019
Other comprehensive income
that will not be reclassified into profit or loss:
(1) Changes in fair value of own credit risk
Less: Income tax

(42,799,812)
10,699,953

2018

(36,313,581)
9,078,395

(32,099,859)
(27,235,186)
---------------------- ---------------------Other comprehensive income
that will be reclassified into profit or loss:
(1) Changes in fair value of other debt
investments
Less: Transfer to profit or loss during
the year
Income tax

200,307,815

359,465,234

(93,298,167)
(26,752,412)

(39,405,430)
(80,014,951)

80,257,236
---------------------(2) Credit impairment loss of
other debt investments
Income tax

687,226
(171,807)
515,419
----------------------

(3) Reserve from cash flow hedging
instruments
Less: Transfer to profit or loss during
the year
Income tax

88
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---------------------(7,373,319)

(184,491)
(2,183,899)

(906,876)
2,070,049

55,224,492
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529,037
(132,247)

8,920,086

6,551,696
---------------------Total

240,044,853
----------------------

(6,210,146)
---------------------206,996,311
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Supplementary cash flow statement
(1)

Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit
Add: Credit impairment losses
Depreciation and amortization
Net losses/ (gains) on disposal of
fixed assets and other assets
Losses from changes in fair value
Amortization of financial
investments
Interest expense for debt
securities in issue
Interest expense for lease
liabilities
Interest income from creditimpaired financial assets
Increase of deferred tax assets
(Increase) / decrease in operating
receivables
Increase / (decrease) in operating
payables
Net cash flows from operating activities
(2)

2019

2018

1,396,571,645
1,195,671,168
318,741,668

2,012,782,808
331,913,891
116,314,460

1,728,992
65,102,972

(384,462)
180,025,256

(141,505,220)

(182,845,280)

84,366,335

306,378,336

37,327,968

-

(7,841,375)
(173,884,524)

(9,641,957)
(153,203,427)

(20,340,982,618)

6,553,581,769

23,731,703,643

(10,499,618,582)

6,167,000,654

(1,344,697,188)

Changes in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the year
Less: Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year
Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents
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2019

2018

57,401,626,672

57,699,677,611

(57,699,677,611)

(60,416,185,682)

(298,050,939)

(2,716,508,071)
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Supplementary cash flow statement (continued)
(3)

48

Cash and cash equivalents:
2019

2018

Cash on hand
Deposits with central bank
Deposits with financial institutions
Placements with financial institutions
Financial assets held for trading
Reverse repurchase agreements

63,708,837
5,441,770,170
2,384,483,893
34,519,826,072
11,011,637,700
3,980,200,000

71,580,376
14,610,395,005
7,072,423,436
10,286,782,023
13,968,203,771
11,690,293,000

Total

57,401,626,672

57,699,677,611

Related-party relationships and transactions
(1)

Information on the parent company of the Bank is as follows:
Name

Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited

Country of incorporation
Principal activities
Shareholding percentage
Proportion of voting rights

Hong Kong
Banking and financial services
100%
100%

As at 31 December 2019, the share capital balance of Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited who is the parent company of the Bank is HKD 65,025 million
(31 December 2018: HKD 65,025 million).
(2)

Transactions between the Bank and its key management personnel
(a)

Transactions with key management personnel

Remuneration of key management
personnel
(b)

2018

71,845,296

55,618,200

Balance of transactions with key management personnel as at balance sheet
date:

Residential mortgage loans
Credit cards
Customer deposits

90
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2019

2018

2,060,578
170,108
33,302,073

2,235,529
137,064
23,870,835
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Related-party relationships and transactions (continued)
(3)

Transactions between the Bank and the parent company and other related-parties.
(a)

Transactions with the parent company of the Bank and other related-parties
are as follows:
2019 Percentage
Interest income
Interest expenses
Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense
Investment income and losses from
changes in fair value
General and administrative expenses
Other income

(b)

196,837,568
248,343,203
652,363,496
188,076,826

3%
9%
39%
47%

203,196,742
74,669,138
566,379,559
94,911,146

3%
3%
40%
39%

122,125,492
689,005,173
775,015

11%
17%
6%

58,069,729
588,712,709
1,014,495

8%
16%
4%

The balances with the parent company of the Bank and other related-parties
as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
2019 Percentage
Deposits with financial institutions
Placements with financial institutions
Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets
Deposits from financial institutions
Borrowings from financial institutions
Financial liabilities held for trading
Derivative financial liabilities
Customer deposits
Other liabilities

(c)

627,719,837
30,739,445,622
1,531,163,958
55,073,288
1,663,299,587
11,935,379,315
12,116,315,143
4,446,909,184
1,956,227,497
158,487,142
1,550,586,851

11%
82%
19%
<1%
31%
79%
74%
22%
20%
<1%
31%

2018 Percentage
4,873,044,559
8,059,396,068
828,859,606
63,700,000
1,920,987,466
6,155,647,012
1,241,158
3,677,527,956
1,428,356,477
145,894,049
1,241,019,740

40%
49%
10%
<1%
60%
53%
<1%
12%
15%
<1%
40%

The notional amount of derivative instruments with the parent company and
other related parties as at balance sheet date is as follows:

Interest rate derivatives
Currency derivatives
Other derivatives

(d)

2018 Percentage

2019

Percentage

62,883,418,308
116,570,443,794
19,390,718,180

8%
12%
65%

2018 Percentage
24,174,109,793
78,135,556,425
9,322,537,090

5%
9%
63%

There is no loan commitment granted to other related parties as at balance
sheet date of 2019 and 2018.
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Related-party relationships and transactions (continued)
(3)

Transactions between the Bank and the parent company and other related-parties.
(continued)
(e)

(4)

49

The relationship between the Bank and other related parties mentioned in
Note 48(3)(a), (b), (c) and (d).
Names

Relationship with The Bank

The overseas subsidiaries and branches
of SC Group
Standard Chartered Global Business
Services Sdn Bhd
Standard Chartered Global Business
Services Private Limited
Standard Chartered Global Business
Services Co., Ltd.
Standard Chartered Corporate Advisory
Co., Ltd.
Standard Chartered Trading (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.
Dalian Star Bright Property Co., Ltd.
Dalian Star Land Property Co., Ltd.
Dalian Star Shine Property Co., Ltd.

Subsidiaries and branches
of the ultimate shareholder
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Associate of Fellow subsidiary
Associate of Fellow subsidiary
Associate of Fellow subsidiary

Related party transactions are in arm’s length with no preference treatments,
comparing to transaction with third parties.

Share-based payments
Expenses recognised for the year arising from share-based payments are as follows:

Equity-settled schemes

2019

2018

11,433,150

12,873,201

The Bank and SC Group operate a number of share-based payment schemes as part of
staff’s remuneration, and the above shares are SC Group’s shares.
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49

Share-based payments (continued)
A reconciliation of share option movement is shown below:
2019

2018

Balance as at 1 January
Granted
Lapsed
Exercised

2,365,563
938,210
(326,941)
(777,402)

1,821,622
1,003,991
(299,972)
(160,078)

Balance as at 31 December

2,199,430

2,365,563

For the share schemes outstanding as at 31 December 2019, their average exercise
price is £5.3 and their remaining contractual life varies from 1.56 years to 8.32 years.
50

Segment reporting
The Bank has three reportable segments, which are Corporate & Institutional Banking
(“CIB”), Commercial Banking (“CB”) and Retail Banking (“RB”).
- Corporate & Institutional Banking supports clients with their transaction banking,
corporate finance, financial markets and borrowing needs, providing solutions to
clients in some of the world’s fastest-growing economies and most active trade
corridors.
- Commercial Banking serves local corporations and medium-sized enterprises. The
Bank aims to be its clients’ main international bank, providing a full range of
international financial solutions in areas such as trade finance, cash management,
financial markets and corporate finance.
- Retail Banking serves individuals and small businesses.
Besides the three clients segments, Treasury - Markets and certain items which are not
managed directly by a client segment are reported in “Central & other Items”.
(1)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Bank’s management regularly reviews the assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenses and results of operations, attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:
Segment assets include all financial assets, loans and advances, and other assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets and other unallocated corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include financial liabilities, customer deposits and other
liabilities with the exception of other unallocated corporate liabilities.
Reportable segment profit before income tax includes revenue from external
customers and inter-segment revenue, expenses, and credit impairment (losses) /
reversal attributable to the segment.
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Segment reporting (continued)
(1)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Information regarding the Bank’s reportable segments for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:
(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Unit: RMB ‘000)

Operating income
- Net interest income
- Other operating
income

Operating expenses
Operating profit
before credit
impairment
Credit impairment
losses
Profit / (loss) before
income tax
Segment assets
Segment liabilities

(Unit: RMB ‘000)

Operating income
- Net interest income
- Other operating
income /
(expenses)

Operating expenses
Operating profit /
(loss) before credit
impairment
Credit impairment
losses
Profit / (loss) before
income tax
Segment assets
Segment liabilities
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2019

Corporate &
Institutional
Banking

Commercial
Banking

Retail
Banking

Central & other
items

Total

2,268,530

468,987

1,560,638

(38,801)

4,259,354

515,429

315,908

861,816

60,180

1,753,333

2,783,959

784,895

2,422,454

21,379

6,012,687

(1,916,841)

(681,938)

(2,090,728)

76,797

(4,612,710)

1,399,977

867,118

102,957

331,726

98,176

20,013

(175,948)

(399,996)

(6,484)

(562,415)

887,131

(72,991)

(68,270)

91,692

837,562

92,306,981

18,845,392

29,093,710

103,885,345

244,131,428

126,239,522

32,711,686

27,702,089

34,465,712

221,119,009

2018

Corporate &
Institutional
Banking

Commercial
Banking

Retail
Banking

Central & other
items

Total

2,406,596

396,214

1,397,418

85,277

4,285,505

275,556

316,699

583,859

(93,308)

1,082,806

2,682,152

712,913

1,981,277

(8,031)

5,368,311

(1,818,874)

(665,009)

(1,963,426)

(1,450)

(4,448,759)

863,278
(4,886)
858,392

47,904

17,851

(9,481)

919,552

(61,409)

(253,834)

(1,002)

(321,131)

(13,505)

(235,983)

(10,483)

598,421

80,533,137

15,872,661

28,154,437

96,118,593

220,678,828

119,167,112

26,285,028

23,609,183

30,897,107

199,958,430
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Segment reporting (continued)
(1)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
(b)

Reconciliation of reportable segment operating income, profit before income
tax, assets and liabilities:
(Unit: RMB ’000)

2019

2018

Operating income
Reportable segment revenue
Cost of free funds
Others

6,012,687
654,587
243,712

5,368,311
694,423
492,051

Total operating income

6,910,986

6,554,785

2019

2018

Profit before income tax
Reportable segment profit before
income tax
Cost of free funds
Allocation of group costs
Others
Profit before income tax

837,562
654,587
813,069
(599,448)

598,421
694,423
834,560
329,452

1,705,770

2,456,856

2019

2018

Assets
Reportable segment assets
Acceptances and endorsements
Others

244,131,428
(7,488,367)
(1,708,076)

220,678,828
(5,405,612)
(75,814)

Total assets

234,934,985

215,197,402

2019

2018

Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements
Others

221,119,009
(7,488,367)
(2,457,770)

199,958,430
(5,405,612)
(1,667,172)

Total liabilities

211,172,872

192,885,646
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Segment reporting (continued)
(2)

Geographical information
In presenting information on the basis of geographical location, revenue is based
on the geographical location where customers are registered. Assets are based
on the geographical location of the specified non-current assets. Overseas
revenue for the year is mainly from net interest income. The following tables set
out information about the geographical location of the Bank’s net interest income
and the Bank’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments and deferred
tax assets):
(Unit: RMB ‘000)

Net interest income / (expense)
2019

(3)

2018

Specified non-current assets
As at 31
As at 31
December 2019
December 2018

Domestic
Overseas

4,567,575
(17,147)

4,511,416
106,695

1,510,140
-

638,450
-

Total

4,550,428

4,618,111

1,510,140

638,450

Major customer
For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, income from any single customer
did not exceed 10% of the Bank’s total operating income.

51

Fiduciary activities
As at 31 December, the Bank’s entrusted loans and deposits are as follows:

Entrusted loans and deposits

52

2019
RMB ‘000

2018
RMB ‘000

106,006,143

107,857,835

Assets pledged as security
As at 31 December 2019, assets of the Bank amounting to RMB 4,069,165,910 (31
December 2018: RMB 12,196,231,959) are in respect of reverse repurchase
agreements against which the Bank holds collateral. As at 31 December 2019, the Bank
does not hold any collateral for reverse repurchase agreements which needs to be sold
or re-pledged due to default.
As at 31 December 2019, liabilities of the Bank amounting to RMB 6,529,456,396 (31
December 2018: RMB 9,651,225,563) are pledged by bonds issued by the government
with market value of RMB 4,780,706,560, issued by Policy Banks with market value of
RMB 2,144,263,200. The Bank conducts these transactions under usual and customary
terms.
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Commitments and contingent liabilities
(1)

Credit commitments
At any given time, the Bank has outstanding commitments to extend credit. These
commitments take the form of approved loans and other facilities. The Bank also
provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of
customers to third parties.
Acceptances comprise undertakings by the Bank to pay bills of exchange drawn
on customers. The Bank expects most acceptances to be settled simultaneously
with the reimbursement from the customers.
The amounts reflected in the table below for guarantees and letters of credit
represents the maximum potential loss that would be recognised at the balance
sheet date if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.
2019

2018

Guarantees
Bank acceptances
Loan commitments
Letters of credit

20,694,348,300
6,316,005,900
2,713,585,800
2,900,927,400

18,480,213,800
4,266,060,300
1,457,291,500
2,518,715,900

Total

32,624,867,400

26,722,281,500

Contract amounts

The Bank periodically assesses and makes allowances for any probable losses
accordingly. As the facilities may expire without being drawn upon, the contract
amounts do not represent expected future cash flows.
(2)

Credit risk weighted amount

Credit risk weighted amount of
contingent liabilities and commitments

2019
RMB ‘000

2018
RMB ‘000

16,811,741

13,532,832

The credit risk weighted amount of contingent liabilities and commitments refers to
the amount as computed in accordance with the Administrative Measures on
Capitals of Commercial Banks (For Trial Implementation) (CBRC [2012] No.1) set
out by the CBRC and depends on the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics.
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Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued)
(3)

Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases of the Bank are payable as follows:
2019

2018

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 2 years (inclusive)
After 2 years but within 3 years (inclusive)
After 3 years

2,200,338
2,143,481
1,994,242
985,813

194,233,190
147,635,440
99,562,613
69,995,911

Total

7,323,874

511,427,154

On 1 January 2019 the Bank adopted new leases standard, which replaced the
previous leases standard issued in 2006.
The impact of new leases standard on the Bank is primarily where the Bank is a
lessee in property lease contracts. On 1 January 2019, the Bank recognized a
lease liability and a corresponding right-of-use asset. Please refer to Note 4.
(4)

Capital commitments
As at 31 December, capital commitments of the Bank are as follows:

Contracted for

54

2019

2018

6,923,003

1,817,814

Risk management
(1)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty may not settle its obligations in
accordance with the agreed terms. The credit exposure of the Bank mainly comes
from CIB, CB and RB. CIB and CB counterparties include multinational
corporations, financial institutions and large and middle-sized local corporation
clients. RB counterparties include personal & small business clients. The Bank
has dedicated standards, policies and procedures to monitor and control credit risk.
- Policy of Credit Risk Management and Control
The Bank’s Board of Directors has delegated the local credit approval
authorities, the credit monitoring processes set-up, and the client credit grading
framework. The essence of the Bank’s credit risk policy is that the risk
management department operates locally and independently while working
closely with business departments.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Policy of Credit Risk Management and Control (continued)
The Bank has put in place a credit control structure and credit risk management
tools to ensure the quality of its credit portfolio. Incorporating SC Group’s credit
risk management requirements, the Bank customized its own credit policy
according to the local market environment and business needs, and local
regulatory requirements as the credit risk management framework.
The core credit policy of CIB&CB Corporate mainly includes the credit
application procedure guide, country credit portfolio guidelines, credit grading
procedures, early alert standard, loan classification guidelines, the working
capital / fixed assets loan guidelines, risk mitigation procedures, problem
accounts management standards, etc. The relative middle / back office also
formulates the operation instruction to make sure the implementation of the
credit policy. The bank’s Corporate credit policy covers the credit due diligence
and approval, the documentation checking, and the post-loan monitoring, which
standardizes the credit risk management. The credit management policies of
Retailed Banking mainly include 4 Country Credit Procedure Manuals (CCPM)
(Credit card, Personal Loan, Mortgage and Business Banking) and
Implementation Rules for Due diligence of Business banking, which provide
policy guidance for pre credit documents checking, credit approval, post loan
management and monitoring, and due-diligence checking to ensure that the
Bank’s retail credit assets meet the established risk appetite and risk control
objectives as well as compliance with regulatory requirements.
The Bank adjusts the credit policy from time to time in accordance with
prevailing economic environment, monetary policy and regulations in China and
in international markets. This is to ensure that the Bank keeps good control of
credit risks in the dynamically-changing economic environment.
The Bank has specific credit policies and underwriting standards for different
business segments. Based on Group’s product guidelines, the Bank has
developed local Product Programme (PPG) and Product Country Addendums
(CA) for every type of lending products according to local legal and regulatory
requirements and market characteristics, to ensure proper risk monitoring on
risk factors, processes and pricing while complying with local legal and
regulatory requirements of China.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Organisational Structure and Responsibilities of Credit Risk Management
The Bank’s Executive Risk Committee (“ERC”) approves standards of credit risk
management, which oversees the delegation of credit authorities. The ERC’s
main responsibilities are to supervise and direct the management of credit risk
within the Bank and to ensure that processes and procedures are in place for
the monitoring and control of risk to meet the standards set down in internal
policies and external regulatory requirements. The Credit Issues Committee
(“CIC”) and other relevant sub-committees under the ERC are responsible to
oversight client’s early alert case and Non-Performing Loan case to ensure the
efficient implementation of ERC’s decision.
- Structure and Responsibilities of Credit Risk Management
The Bank also established the three lines of defence for credit risk management
with clearly-defined roles and responsibilities to manage the Bank’s credit risk.
The businesses and functions engaged in or supporting revenue generating
activities are the first line of defence to own and manage the credit risks. The
control functions like Risk Management function and Compliance function are
the second line of defence to provide oversight and challenge the credit risk
management of the first line. The internal audit function is the third line of
defence to provide independent assurance of the effective implementation of
credit risk controls.
The business team is responsible for the client’s due diligence, the credit risk
analysis, as the first line of defence for credit risk management. The business
team is also responsible for monitoring credit usage post facility granting. The
relationship manager regularly conducts site visit, constantly monitors the
client’s credit profile, and annually prepares for the credit review report. The
relationship manager must submit an early alert report timely if there is any
credit issue that may endanger the bank’s credit assets.
The Bank has strictly segregated the deal initiation and credit approval duties.
The credit approvers, i.e. CIB and CB Credit or RB Credit, perform independent
credit approvals upon facility applications according to the credit authority, and
review limit excess and over-due accounts. Integrated Middle Office as well as
the legal department is responsible for security documentation, preparation and
maintenance of credit documentation files. The operation departments are
responsible for system processing and control of loan drawdown. The Bank’s
Group Special Asset Management department (“GSAM”) is responsible for
managing clients whose credit conditions has worsened continuously with high
probability of default, including taking actions such as securing additional
collaterals, collecting receivables, restructuring loans, proceeding a lawsuit or
liquidating collaterals. The Bank holds regular risk management meetings
involving related functions to manage and monitor credit risks, covering topics
like early alert account management, special assets management, credit
portfolio quality and impairment provisions.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Risk Assets Classification
An alphanumeric grading system (“CG”) is used for quantifying the risk
associated with a counterparty. The grading is based on a probability of default,
with customers analysed against a range of quantitative and qualitative attributes.
Based on clients’ probability of default, the Bank divides credit grading into 14
credit grades and 28 sub-grades with quantitative and qualitative measures.
Credit grades of 1A to 12C are assigned to performing customers while credit
grades 13 and 14 to non-performing (or defaulted) customers. Performing
clients (CG1-11) are under co-management of both business unit and credit
department while clients with high probability of default will be downgraded to
credit grades of 12 to 14, and transferred to GSAM for central management.
For retail banking customer, based on customer delinquency status, credit
assets classification mainly focuses on customer’s repayment capability and
takes external information such as credit bureau performance as reference as
well. Internal credit risk management reports are prepared on a regular basis
to track and monitor the quality of credit portfolio. The asset quality and risk are
tracked by monitoring the delinquent performance of loan portfolio, macroeconomic
trend, loan impairment provision, non-performing loans and other indicators.
For customers with early warning signals, prevention actions will be taken timely
before default. For customers already falling into delinquency, they will be
passed to Collection department for central management and asset attachment.
According to Guidelines for Loan Risk Classification (yin jian fa [2007] No. 54)
issued by the former CBRC, the Bank also classifies loans into five grades:
pass, special mention, sub-standard, doubtful, and loss.
- Risk Management of Key Businesses
(i)

CIB and CB
According to the Bank’s credit policies and procedures, CIB and CB
require the credit approvers to grant lending facility within the delegated
authority limit and ensure the segregation of duties between deal
originators and approvers. ERC reviews the portfolio on a regular basis.
CIB and CB perform credit facility application and approval mainly in the
Credit Mate system, which is a global system developed by SC Group for
credit application and approval. The Credit Mate system’s major functions
include client’s financial analysis, credit grading assessment, business
credit application, early alert report, covenant and risk trigger, etc. The
Credit Mate system grants different access authority according to the
user’s role. Generally, the Relationship Manager and Credit Analyst have
the system authority for initiating credit grading assessment and credit
application, while the Credit Officers are authorized to approve the
application within their delegated authority limit.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Risk Management of Key Businesses (continued)
(i)

CIB and CB (continued)
To assist risk officers in monitoring the portfolio, various internal risk
management reports are available on a regular basis, providing individual
counterparty, counterparty group and portfolio exposure information,
credit grade information, the status of accounts showing signs of
weakness or financial deterioration and updates on credit markets.
In respect of credit risk arising from the derivatives traded with
counterparties, the Bank sets credit limits for each counterparty based on
the estimated total potential trading volume and the counterparty’s overall
credit profile etc. The credit risk exposure is calculated from the current
positive fair value (asset) of the underlying contract together with potential
exposures caused by future market movements. The counterparty credit
risk is managed by the Bank as part of the overall lending limits to
customers.

(ii)

RB
Credit risk in RB is also managed through a framework of credit policies
and procedures. Standard credit application forms are generally used and
centrally processed with high degree of automation. Based on predesigned decision logic, credit underwriting system will generate credit
grading assessment and acceptance decision and computed qualified
credit limit. Manual approval process will be triggered as well for certain
customers, products or markets where it is appropriate. Same as CIB and
CB, loan origination and approval duties are segregated.
RB is using Transact and Credit Mate system for underwriting and
collecting clients’ information, whose credit approval procedures are
similar to CIB and CB’s.
For personal loan products, there are established risk grade guidelines for
clients. The Bank applies different underwriting standards to different risk
grades.
Retail mortgage and personal loan are based on Loan Application
Processing System (“LAPS”) for underwriting and information
management. LAPS makes credit decision proposal like “approve”/”
decline”/“approve” with conditions“, etc. automatically based on predesigned underwriting logic, considering factors of credit rating,
repayment ability, and credit bureau information, etc. According to the
credit decision proposed by LAPS, retail credit authorized approvers
make final decision within Delegation of Authority (“DOA”) by following
credit policies and operational procedures.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Risk Management of Key Businesses (continued)
(ii)

RB (continued)
Retail credit card is based on Application Processing System (“APS”) from
China Union Pay Data (“CUPD”) for underwriting and information
management. APS automatically makes approval or declining decision
proposal according to applicants’ credit rating, repayment ability, and
credit bureau information, etc. while credit approvers make final decision
within DOA by following credit policies and operational procedures.

- Management’s on ECL
Expected credit losses are computed as unbiased, probability weighted
amounts which are determined by evaluating a range of reasonably possible
outcomes, the time value of money, and considering all reasonable and
supportable information including that which is forward looking.
For CIB and CB credit portfolios, the estimate of expected cash shortfalls is
determined by multiplying the probability of default (PD) with the loss given
default (LGD) with the expected exposure at the time of default (EAD). For RB
portfolios, the Bank has adopted simplified approaches based on historical roll
rates or loss rates. The computation and assumptions are built into models and
centrally handled by ECL calculation team.
For possibly impaired financial assets, the estimate of cash shortfalls may
require the use of expert credit judgement. GSAM team is responsible for the
relative ECL assessment.
Management of the Bank performs monthly analytical review on the ending
balance and movement of outstanding exposure and ECL by staging. Any
identified issues will be circulated to ECL experts to dig out the root cause.
Management of the Bank has quarterly attestation for ECL and report to the
senior management within SC Group.
- Concentration of Credit Risk
The Bank reviews and monitors asset concentration to individual industries. For
CIB and CB, industries caps have been set to limit and control industry concentrations.
Concentration risk in the CIB and CB loan portfolio is managed through ERC,
which is chaired by the Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) of the Bank, and comprises
Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”), Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Head of
Compliance, executive officers from CIB, CB and RB, all the key credit
approvers and other executive members.
Concentration risk in RB is managed within the exposure limits, concentration
limits and client limits for each product segment.
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
- Country Risk
Country Risk refers to the risk of credit losses due to a borrower’s or debtor’s
inability or refusal to repay as a result of adverse economic, political or social
changes/events in the country or region where the borrower or debtor resides.
With the globalization of financial markets, the Bank has been closely monitoring
its country risk exposure in the SC Group foot print markets. The Bank has also
established country risk management procedures, in accordance with the
Country Risk Management Guideline issued by the CBIRC. Country Risk
exposure is closely monitored by the CRO on a monthly basis to ensure the
level of exposure is controlled and the necessary provision is provided to cover
potential losses.
Stress testing is a key risk management tool and embedded in the credit risk
management framework. Key credit risk metrics are incorporated in the risk
tolerance framework and reported to ERC and the Board of Directors regularly.
(a)

Maximum exposure to credit risk
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements is the carrying amount of the financial assets less credit loss
provisions. The maximum exposure at the balance sheet date is as follows:

Cash and deposits with central bank
Deposits with financial institutions
Placements with financial
institutions
Derivative financial assets
Reverse repurchase agreements
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held for trading
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Other assets
Sub-total
Guarantees
Bank acceptances
Loan commitments
Letters of credit
Maximum exposure to credit risk

104 Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

www.sc.com/cn

2019

2018

16,005,240,098
5,737,011,604

26,138,409,797
12,111,668,430

37,406,781,407
8,002,524,890
4,003,214,008
93,739,340,796

16,512,265,568
8,365,209,817
11,737,450,136
78,628,667,380

18,618,655,671
1,059,843,198
42,515,355,410
4,597,165,766

23,119,951,722
543,065,558
33,330,329,160
2,943,558,194

231,685,132,848

213,430,575,762

20,694,348,300
6,316,005,900
2,713,585,800
2,900,927,400

18,480,213,800
4,266,060,300
1,457,291,500
2,518,715,900

264,310,000,248

240,152,857,262

54

(1)

(b)
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2,254,577

161,355,808

916,949

22,004,907

Total

*

914,169
2,780

19,294,101
2,710,806

Credit commitments
Financial guarantee contracts
Loan commitments

922,254

922,254
-

-

-

-

1,285,738

6,486
1,278,720
532
-

22,921,856

20,208,270
2,713,586

42,515,355

Total

-

12-month ECL

13,544

5,180
8,364

2,998

12-month ECL

31 December 2019

164,532,639

47,153,493
95,716,365
1,060,375
4,597,166

16,005,240

Total

31 December 2019

Including deposits with financial institutions, placements with financial institutions and reverse repurchase agreements.

-

42,515,355

12-month ECL

2,254,577
-

47,153,493
92,539,534
1,060,375
4,597,166

-

Gross carrying amount
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

-

16,005,240

Gross carrying amount
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

Financial assets measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Other debt investments

Total

Deposits with central bank
Balances with financial
Institutions (*)
Loans and advances to customers
Debt investments
Other financial assets

Financial assets measured
at amortised cost

12-month ECL

(Expressed in RMB’000 Yuan)

591,661

591,661
-

-

1,766

530
1,236

-

-

-

-

Credit loss provision
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

106,643

106,643
-

-

Credit loss provision
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s credit risk stages of financial instruments are as followed:

Analysis on the credit quality of financial instruments

Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

15,310

5,710
9,600

2,998

Total

1,984,042

6,486
1,977,024
532
-

-

Total
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2,268,050

146,634,863

753,105

17,995,428

Total

*

749,455
3,650

16,541,786
1,453,642

Credit commitments
Financial guarantee contracts
Loan commitments

909,868

909,868
-

-

-

-

18,748,533

17,291,241
1,457,292

33,330,329

Total

7,838

2,189
5,649

2,311

12-month ECL

614,349

4,219
610,130
-

-

12-month ECL

31 December 2018

149,812,781

40,365,603
79,822,144
543,066
2,943,558

26,138,410

Total

31 December 2018

Including deposits with financial institutions, placements with financial institutions and reverse repurchase agreements.

-

33,330,329

12-month ECL

2,268,050
-

40,365,603
76,644,226
543,066
2,943,558

-

Gross carrying amount
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

-

26,138,410

Gross carrying amount
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

Financial assets measured at fair
value through other
comprehensive income
Other debt investments

Total

Deposits with central bank
Balances with financial
Institutions (*)
Loans and advances to customers
Debt investments
Other financial assets

Financial assets measured
at amortised cost

12-month ECL

(Expressed in RMB’000 Yuan)

476,240

476,240
-

-

2,746

2,655
91

-

-

-

-

Credit loss provision
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

107,107

107,107
-

-

Credit loss provision
Lifetime ECL not
Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired
credit-impaired

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s credit risk stages of financial instruments are as followed:

Analysis on the credit quality of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

10,584

4,844
5,740

2,311

Total

1,197,696

4,219
1,193,477
-

-

Total
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Risk management (continued)
(1)

Credit risk (continued)
(c)

Debt securities investments by rating agency designation
At the balance sheet date, according to the external rating agency - Standard
& Poor's and Moody analysis, the credit quality of the Bank’s debt securities
investments has been assessed as follows:

(2)

2019

2018

A to AAA
B to BBB +
Unrated

51,049,137,493
2,211,014,800
705,712,700

40,300,720,452
4,774,692,220
1,673,463,670

Total

53,965,864,993

46,748,876,342

Market risk
The Bank recognises market risk as the potential for loss of earnings or economic
value due to adverse changes in financial market rates or prices. The Bank is
exposed to market risk arising principally from customer-driven transactions. The
objective of the Bank’s market risk policies and processes is to obtain the optimal
balance of risk and return whilst meeting customers’ requirements.
The primary categories of market risk for the Bank are:
- interest rate risk: arising from changes in yield curves, credit spreads and
implied volatilities on interest rate options
- currency exchange rate risk: arising from changes in exchange rates and
implied volatilities on foreign exchange options
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Risk management (continued)
(2)

Market risk (continued)
(a)

Foreign exchange risk
As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s foreign exchange open positions of
assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
2019

RMB ’000

USD
Translated
into RMB ’000

11,834,251

4,169,521

65,177

16,068,949

7,635,781

32,938,974

2,569,038

43,143,793

4,003,214

-

-

4,003,214

81,549,776

6,926,881

5,262,684

93,739,341

11,777,414

814,294

6,026,948

18,618,656

38,240,608

5,334,591

-

43,575,199

12,485,450

2,550,954

749,429

15,785,833

167,526,494

52,735,215

14,673,276

234,934,985

24,619,560

5,215,299

1,662,759

31,497,618

15,137,615

161,893

4,536,162

19,835,670

3,301,513
83,399,575

51,113,386

5,594,832

3,301,513
140,107,793

11,700,143

3,322,871

1,407,264

16,430,278

138,158,406

59,813,449

13,201,017

211,172,872

Net position

29,368,088

(7,078,234)

1,472,259

23,762,113

Credit commitments

14,186,466

14,517,389

3,921,012

32,624,867

1,107,031,682

594,449,867

99,456,085

1,800,937,634

Assets
Cash and deposits with
central bank
Deposits and
placements with
financial institutions
Reverse repurchase
agreements
Loans and advances to
customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held
for trading
Debt and other debt
investment
Derivative financial
assets and other
assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Deposits and
borrowings from
financial institutions
Financial liabilities held
for trading
Repurchase
agreements
Customer deposits
Derivative financial
liabilities and other
liabilities
Total liabilities

Notional amount of
derivatives
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Translated
into RMB ’000

Total
Translated
into RMB ’000

---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------
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Risk management (continued)
(2)

Market risk (continued)
(a)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the Bank’s foreign exchange open positions of
assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date are as follows:
2018

RMB ’000

USD
Translated
into RMB ’000

23,004,020

3,123,897

82,073

26,209,990

12,585,879

13,237,119

2,800,936

28,623,934

11,737,450

-

-

11,737,450

63,939,076

9,500,717

5,188,874

78,628,667

16,570,397

2,547,238

4,002,317

23,119,952

32,985,490

887,905

-

33,873,395

9,927,770

1,816,909

1,259,335

13,004,014

170,750,082

31,113,785

13,333,535

215,197,402

104,937

-

-

104,937

10,491,517

5,553,967

727,339

16,772,823

25,387,995

303,096

3,806,829

29,497,920

4,270,734
74,856,874
6,851,604

40,853,044
-

5,866,952
-

4,270,734
121,576,870
6,851,604

11,002,377

2,349,132

459,249

13,810,758

132,966,038

49,059,239

10,860,369

192,885,646

Net position

37,784,044

(17,945,454)

2,473,166

22,311,756

Credit commitments

10,103,745

14,507,177

2,111,360

26,722,282

Notional amount of
derivatives

875,440,919

504,436,242

65,023,949

1,444,901,110

Assets
Cash and deposits with
central bank
Deposits and
placements with
financial institutions
Reverse repurchase
agreements
Loans and advances to
customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held
for trading
Debt and other debt
investment
Derivative financial
assets and other
assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Borrowings from central
bank
Deposits and
borrowings from
financial institutions
Financial liabilities held
for trading
Repurchase
agreements
Customer deposits
Debt securities in issue
Derivative financial
liabilities and other
liabilities
Total liabilities

Other CCY
Translated
into RMB ’000

Total
Translated
into RMB ’000

---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------

---------------- ---------------- ---------------- ----------------
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Risk management (continued)
(2)

Market risk (continued)
(b)

Market risk governance
ERC, under authority delegated by the Board of Directors, is responsible for
policies and other standards for the control of market risk and overseeing
their effective implementation. These policies cover the Bank’s trading and
non-trading books.
The bank follows group’s market risk management infrastructure,
continuously improving the transmission mechanism of market risk appetite
to desk levels, prospectively analysing the market risk in a timely manner,
optimizing the market data quality, strengthening the application of stress
testing. Limits are proposed by the businesses within the terms of agreed
policy. Traded Risk Management department approves the limits within
delegated authorities and monitors exposures against these limits.
Additional limits are placed on specific instruments and position
concentrations where appropriate. Sensitivity measures are used in addition
to Value at Risk (“VaR”) as risk management tools. For example, interest
rate sensitivity is measured in terms of exposure to a one basis point increase
in yields, whereas foreign exchange and commodity sensitivities are
measured in terms of the underlying values or amounts involved. Option
risks are controlled through revaluation limits on underlying price and
volatility shifts, limits on volatility risk and other variables that determine the
option’s value.

(c)

VaR and stress testing
- VaR
The Bank measures the risk of losses arising from future potential adverse
movements in market rates, prices and volatilities using VaR
methodology. VaR, in general, is a quantitative measure of market risk
that applies recent historical market conditions to estimate the potential
future loss in market value that will not be exceeded in a set time period
at a set statistical confidence level. VaR provides a consistent measure
that can be applied across trading businesses and products over time and
can be set against actual daily trading profit and loss outcome.
VaR is calculated for expected movements over a minimum of one
business day and to a confidence level of 97.5 per cent. This confidence
level suggests that potential daily losses, in excess of the VaR measure,
are likely to be experienced seven times per year. The market risk system
used for VaR calculation is internally developed by SC Group.
The Bank applies two VaR methodologies:
- Historical simulation: involves the revaluation of all existing positions to
reflect the effect of historically observed changes in market risk factors
on the valuation of the current portfolio. This approach is applied for
general market risk factors and covers also the majority of specific
(credit spread) risk VaR.
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Risk management (continued)
(2)

Market risk (continued)
(c)

VaR and stress testing (continued)
- VaR (continued)
- Monte Carlo simulation: this methodology is similar to historical
simulation but with considerably more input risk factor observations.
These are generated by random sampling techniques, but the results
retain the essential variability and correlations of historically observed
risk factor changes. This approach is also applied for some of the
specific (credit spread) risk VaR.
In both methods a historical observation period of one year is chosen and
applied. VaR is calculated on The Bank’s exposure as at the end of the
reporting period.
- Stress testing
Losses beyond the confidence interval are not captured by VaR
calculation, which therefore gives no indication of the size of unexpected
losses in these situations.
VaR is complemented by weekly stress testing of market risk exposures
to highlight potential risk that may arise from extreme market events that
are rare but plausible. Stress testing is an integral part of the market risk
management framework and considers both historical market events and
forward-looking scenarios. A consistent stress testing methodology is
applied to trading and non-trading books. The stress testing methodology
assumes that scope for management action would be limited during a
stress event, reflecting the decrease in market liquidity that often occurs.
Stress scenarios are regularly updated to reflect changes in risk profile
and economic events. ERC reviews stress exposures on a regular basis.
Regular stress test scenarios are applied to interest rates, credit spreads,
exchange rates, and commodity prices. This covers all asset classes in
the Financial Markets’ banking and trading books.
- VaR analysis
The Bank’s average VaR in 2019 is 34 percent higher than 2018, which
is contributed by the increase of risk exposures in both non-trading and
trading books.
Non-trading book average VaR in 2019 is 58 percent higher than 2018.
Trading book average VaR in 2019 is 55 percent higher than 2018.

www.sc.com/cn

Standard Chartered Bank (China) Limited Annual Report 2019

111

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

54

Risk management (continued)
(2)

Market risk (continued)
(c)

VaR and stress testing (continued)
- VaR analysis (continued)
The trading and non-trading VaR of the Bank as at year end are as below:
(USD ’000)

Average

2019
High

Low 31 December

Non-trading1

2,907

4,226

1,655

2,755

Trading

1,949

4,090

927

1,398

Trading and non-trading2

4,448

6,624

3,350

3,467

(USD ’000)

Average

2018
High

Low 31 December

Non-trading1

1,841

2,631

1,381

1,812

Trading

1,255

2,219

685

1,549

Trading and non-trading2

3,312

4,762

2,259

4,305

1

Non-trading book refers to the Banking book positions managed by the
Treasury - Markets (TM) desk.

2.

The total VaR shown in the tables above is not a sum of the component
risks due to offsets between them.

- Market risk VaR coverage
Interest rate risk from the commercial balance sheet is transferred to
Treasury - Markets where it is managed by the Treasury - Markets desk
under the supervision of the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”). TM
transacts in the market using approved financial instruments in order to
manage the net interest rate risk, subject to approved VaR and risk limits.
VaR and stress tests are therefore applied to these non-trading book
exposures in the same way as for the trading book, including debt
investment.
Foreign exchange risk on the non-trading book portfolios is minimised by
match funding assets and liabilities in the same currency.
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Risk management (continued)
(3)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank does not have enough financial resources to
meet its obligations as they fall due without incurring excessive cost.
The Bank sets internal liquidity risk management policies and limits, which are
approved by ALCO regularly with delegation from the Executive Committee.
The Executive Committee authorizes ALCO to manage liquidity risk. ALCO
meetings which are held at least monthly, review relevant reports and assess
current liquidity levels and compliance with liquidity risk limits. Treasury - Markets
is responsible for daily liquidity risk management in accordance with the liquidity
risk policies and ensuring compliance with liquidity limits. Liquidity risk limits are
monitored by Treasury Risk and Finance. The Bank establishes management
information technology system, which is matched up to the liquidity risk
management policy, so as to effectively identify, measure, monitor and control
liquidity risk.
ALCO ensures compliance with local regulatory and SC Group liquidity policies,
limits and guidelines, mainly through the following processes:
•

Approving balance sheet budgets and forecasts ensuring that they are
consistent with local business conditions and adhering to liquidity limits,
policies, targets and regulatory requirements. Reviewing material variances
between actual versus budget and forecasts.

•

Setting local targets within SC Group policy and guidelines.

•

Reviewing, approving and testing the country liquidity crisis management
plan in line with SC Group policy. Reviewing stress test results and relevant
management actions.

•

Reviewing recovery indicators and material events impacting liquidity stress
ratings.

•

Reviewing and approving business initiatives and trends including asset
allocation, issuance and remittance strategies relating to the management of
the balance sheet.

•

Monitoring and managing risks associated with local payment systems.

•

Ensuring compliance with SC Group policy on funds transfer pricing.

Customer deposits form a significant part of the Bank’s overall funding.
Professional markets are accessed for the purposes of providing additional
funding, maintaining a presence in local money markets and optimising asset and
liability maturities.
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23,762,113

Net position

25,874,893

211,634,306

-----------

211,172,872

Total liabilities

-----------

31,678,505
19,835,670
3,304,817
140,385,036
9,770,100
6,660,178

31,497,618
19,835,670
3,301,513
140,107,793
9,770,100
6,660,178

Liabilities
Deposits and borrowings from financial
institutions
Financial liabilities held for trading
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities

237,509,199

-----------

18,618,656
1,199,292
43,022,719
7,783,309

18,618,656
1,059,843
42,515,355
7,783,309
234,934,985

43,324,714
8,002,525
4,008,842
95,480,193

43,143,793
8,002,525
4,003,214
93,739,341

-----------

16,068,949

16,068,949

Book value

Undiscounted
contractual
cash flow

Total assets

Assets
Cash and deposits with central bank
Deposits and placements with financial
institutions
Derivative financial assets
Reverse repurchase agreements
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held for trading
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Other assets

(Unit: RMB ‘000)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

11,081,448

1,577,645

-----------

1,577,645

12,659,093

-----------

3,402,918

-

9,256,175

Undated

(71,129,263)

98,385,058

-----------

6,014,961
198,667
82,401,330
9,770,100
-

27,255,795

-----------

11,109,337
-

2,384,176
8,002,525
253,100

5,506,657

On demand

2,706,807

52,182,408

-----------

15,081,523
4,628,047
3,304,817
26,072,404
3,095,617

54,889,215

-----------

1,786,107
21,857
638,986

35,148,055
4,008,842
13,217,924

67,444

Due within
1 month

2019

21,033,011

11,260,668

-----------

163,113
3,717,719
7,373,997
5,839

32,293,679

-----------

2,964,200
1,655
10,108,998
-

969,567
17,853,914

395,345

Due between
1 to 3 months

13,110,540

38,741,711

-----------

10,418,908
5,811,933
20,540,717
1,970,153

51,852,251

-----------

2,603,577
11,105
11,564,372
3,741,405

4,698,031
28,390,433

843,328

Due between
3 months to
1 year

31,748,220

9,446,970

-----------

5,439,458
3,996,588
10,924

41,195,190

-----------

155,435
630,438
20,986,227
-

124,885
19,298,205

-

Due between
1 to 5 years

17,324,130

39,846

-----------

39,846
-

17,363,976

-----------

534,237
363,122
-

16,466,617

-

Due after
5 years
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23,119,952
645,131
33,770,659
4,638,804

23,119,952
543,066
33,330,329
4,638,804
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192,885,646

22,311,756

Total liabilities

Net position

24,115,286

193,255,484

16,865,754
29,497,920
4,265,912
121,718,341
6,925,804
9,786,376
4,024,382

16,772,823
29,497,920
4,270,734
121,576,870
6,851,604
9,786,376
4,024,382

-----------

170,995

104,937

Liabilities
Borrowings from central bank
Deposits and borrowings from financial
institutions
Financial liabilities held for trading
Repurchase agreements
Customer deposits
Debt securities in issue
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities

-----------

-----------

217,370,770

28,754,663
8,365,210
11,741,914
80,124,447

28,623,934
8,365,210
11,737,450
78,628,667

215,197,402

26,209,990

26,209,990

Book value

Undiscounted
contractual
cash flow

-----------

Total assets

Assets
Cash and deposits with central bank
Deposits and placements with financial
institutions
Derivative financial assets
Reverse repurchase agreements
Loans and advances to customers
Financial investments:
Financial assets held for trading
Debt investments
Other debt investments
Other assets

(Unit: RMB ‘000)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Risk management (continued)

11,301,504

1,078,235

-----------

1,078,235

-

12,379,739

-----------

1,783,572

-

10,596,167

Undated

(53,706,793)

96,994,523

-----------

4,689,409
82,518,738
9,786,376
-

-

43,287,730

-----------

13,652,380
-

6,423,978
8,365,210
162,702

14,683,460

On demand

4,987,724

39,276,926

-----------

1,106,733
12,715,771
4,265,912
19,885,767
1,302,743

-

44,264,650

-----------

1,514,618
18,874
2,512,427
29,807

14,372,583
11,741,914
14,074,427

-

Due within
1 month

2018

6,500,010

17,642,872

-----------

5,215,577
3,201,427
9,221,536
4,332

-

24,142,882

-----------

2,798,596
8,091,578
-

3,183,086
10,069,622

-

Due between
1 to 3 months

10,721,652

32,725,216

-----------

5,854,035
11,662,228
6,482,285
6,925,804
1,629,869

170,995

43,446,868

-----------

5,154,358
5,556
10,830,211
2,825,425

4,384,994
19,315,961

930,363

Due between
3 months to
1 year

27,287,862

5,537,712

-----------

1,918,494
3,610,015
9,203

-

32,825,574

-----------

620,701
12,336,443
-

390,022
19,478,408

-

Due between
1 to 5 years

17,023,327

-

-----------

-

-

17,023,327

-----------

-

17,023,327

-

Due after
5 years
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Risk management (continued)
(4)

Operational risk
Operational risk is the potential risk and loss due to an event or action resulting
from the failure of internal processes, people, and systems, or from external
events. Comprehensive risk management framework for banks (“the Framework”),
serves as the key document of the management of operational risk, provides the
guidelines for the governance of operational risk. The operational risk standards
and procedures (“the standards and procedures”) have further provided the
assurance of the policy and standards for practice.
According to the Framework and the standards and procedures, three defence
lines have been set up to proactively manage operational risk. Staff with
supervisory responsibility at all levels serve as the first line of defence, within the
scope of their direct organisational responsibilities; the Country Head of
Operational Risk and operational risk control owners together play the role of
second line of defence, supported by their respective control functions; while the
third line of defence for operational risk is Internal Audit. These three defence lines
constitute a comprehensive and effective management mechanism for operational
risks across the Bank. Meanwhile, we enhanced Enterprise Operational Risk
Platform (“EORP”) system, which effectively supports the end to end management
of operational risks from identification, assessment, mitigation to follow-ups.
Country Executive Risk Committee (“ERC”) holds regular meetings and reviews
the Bank’s operational risk management to ensure the overall operational risk
exposure meets the Bank’s risk appetite set by the Board of Directors.
The Bank has continued the momentum in 2019 with more comprehensive
Operational Risk Management Framework which resulted in stronger operational
risk management, fewer risk events and less operational losses. Statistics shows
that 95% of potential risks identified in 2019 have been well managed and rated
low. To enhance the internal control policies, the Bank implemented Enterprise
Risk Management Framework (“ERMF”) and 10 Principal Risk Type (“PRT”)
Frameworks. Risk Type Framework Owners are responsible to oversee internal
control under their PRTs to ensure the effectiveness and reasonableness of the
Bank's internal control.

(5)

Reputational risk
Reputational risk is defined as the potential for damage to the franchise, resulting
in loss of earnings or adverse impact on market capitalization, because of
stakeholders taking a negative view of the organisation or its actions or inactions
– leading stakeholders to change their behaviour. The failure of complying with
relevant standards and policies may lead to reputational risk. Reputational risk can
also result from potential failure of another Principle Risk Type: country risk, credit
risk, capital & liquidity risk, information & cyber risk, financial crime risk, compliance
risk, conduct risk, market risk or operational risk.
CRO is the country reputational risk framework owner and responsible for the
overall reputational risk management. Other Principle Risk Type Framework
owners are accountable for secondary reputational risk arising from their principle
risk types. All staff are responsible for day to day identification and escalation of
reputational risk. In addition, reputational risk is reviewed by the CEO and the
Executive Committee on a regular basis.
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Risk management (continued)
(6)

Fair values of financial instruments
The following table presents the fair value information and the fair value hierarchy
of the Bank’s assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value at each balance
sheet date on a recurring or non-recurring basis. The level in which fair value
measurement is categorised is determined by the level of the fair value hierarchy
of the lowest level input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement. The
levels of inputs are defined as follows:
Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are observable at
the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are either directly or indirectly
observable for underlying assets or liabilities;
Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for underlying assets or liabilities.
The tables below show the Bank’s classification of financial instruments held at fair
value into the valuation hierarchy as at 31 December.
(Unit: RMB’000)
Recurring fair value
measured assets
Financial assets held for
trading
- Financial investments
held for the purpose of
trading
- Loans and advances to
customers
Derivative financial assets
Other debt investments

Note

12

9
14

Total
Recurring fair value
measured liabilities
Financial liabilities held for
trading
- Deposits from financial
institutions
- Borrowings from financial
institutions
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits
- Short bond position
Derivative financial liabilities
Total

23

9

31 December

2019
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

18,485,114

7,602,591

10,719,690

162,833

11,026,830

7,602,591

3,424,239

-

7,458,284
8,002,525
41,988,977

9,744
32,137,070

7,295,451
7,992,781
9,851,907

162,833
-

68,476,616

39,749,405

28,564,378

162,833

19,829,885

195,649

19,243,105

391,131

5,097,297

-

4,706,166

391,131

4,446,909
3,229,456
6,860,574
195,649
9,770,100

195,649
7,617

4,446,909
3,229,456
6,860,574
9,762,483

-

29,599,985

203,266

29,005,588

391,131
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Risk management (continued)
(6)

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(Unit: RMB’000)
Recurring fair value
measured assets
Financial assets held for
trading
- Financial investments
held for the purpose of
trading
- Loans and advances to
customers
Derivative financial assets
Other debt investments

Note

12

9
14

Total
Recurring fair value
measured liabilities
Financial liabilities held for
trading
- Borrowings from central
bank
- Deposits from financial
institutions
- Borrowings from financial
institutions
- Repurchase agreements
- Customer deposits
Derivative financial liabilities
Total

23

9

31 December

2018
Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

22,976,052

8,822,255

14,153,797

-

14,016,733

8,822,255

5,194,478

-

8,959,319
8,365,210
32,716,032

13,405
20,345,088

8,959,319
8,351,805
12,370,944

-

64,057,294

29,180,748

34,876,546

-

29,476,147

-

29,447,809

28,338

1,898,288

-

1,898,288

-

1,232,978

-

1,204,640

28,338

3,677,528
3,388,988
19,278,365
9,786,376

10,958

3,677,528
3,388,988
19,278,365
9,775,418

-

39,262,523

10,958

39,223,227

28,338

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers, between Level
1 and Level 2, of the Bank’s assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis.
(a)

Level 2 fair value measurement
During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no changes in
valuation techniques for the recurring Level 2 fair value measurement.
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Risk management (continued)
(6)

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(b)

Level 3 fair value measurement
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of the assets
and liabilities under the recurring level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:
(Unit: RMB ’000)

2019
Asset
Financial assets
held for trading
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
held for trading

2018
Asset
Derivative financial
assets

from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
Total gain or loss
Balance at
recognised in the
1 January 2019 income statement
Movement

-

28,338

Balance at
31 December
2019

7,398

155,435

162,833

(1,547)

364,340

391,131

from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018
Total gain or loss
Balance at
recognised in the
1 January 2018 income statement
Movement

Balance at
31 December
2018

165

-

(165)

-

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
held for trading
Derivative financial
liabilities

451,302

11,407

(434,371)

28,338

771

-

(771)

-

Total

452,073

11,407

(435,142)

28,338

If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the financial
instrument is estimated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques
applied include recent arm’s length market transactions between
knowledgeable and willing parties, reference to the fair value of another
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cashflow analysis and
option pricing models.
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Risk management (continued)
(6)

Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
(c)

Fair value of financial instruments which are not measured at fair value on
the balance sheet.
The Bank’s financial assets which are not recognised at fair value on the
balance sheet mainly include cash and deposits with central bank, deposits
with financial institutions, placements with financial institutions, reverse
repurchase agreements, loans and advances to customers and other
financial assets held at amortised cost.
Except for the loans and advances to customers, most of the financial assets
are primarily priced at market interest rates and mature within 1 year.
Accordingly, the carrying values of these financial assets approximate the
fair values.
Loans and advances to customers are stated at amortised cost less
allowances for impairment losses (Note 11). Loans and advances to
customers are mostly priced at floating rates that closely approximate the
PBOC reference interest rates or market interest rates. Impaired loans and
advances are stated at amortised cost less allowances for impairment losses
to reflect their recoverable amounts. Accordingly, their carrying values
approximate the fair values.
The Bank’s financial liabilities which are not recognised at fair value on the
balance sheet mainly include deposits from financial institutions, borrowings
from financial institutions, customer deposits and other financial liabilities
held at amortised cost. The carrying values of these financial liabilities
approximate the fair values at the balance sheet date.

(7)

Capital management
The Bank seeks to maintain a strong capital position including the maintenance of
management buffers sufficient to support its strategic aims. The capital plan
approved by the Board of Directors ensures that adequate levels of capital and an
efficient mix of the different components of capital are maintained to support the
Bank’s strategy and business plans.
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Risk management (continued)
(7)

Capital management (continued)
A strong governance and process framework is embedded in the Bank’s capital
management framework. The Board of Directors takes ultimate responsibility for
capital management. The Bank’s capital position is regularly reviewed against the
capital risk appetite by the Board of Directors. ALCO is responsible for monitoring
the capital position, establishing the relevant mechanism of capital management
and reporting to the Board of Directors.
In accordance with Administrative Measures on Capital of Commercial Banks (Yin
Jian Hui Ling [2012] No.1) (the “Capital Measures”) published by the CBRC, the
Bank should comply with the requirements on capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”). The
Bank’s common equity tier 1 CAR, tier 1 CAR and CAR should be no less than
7.5%, 8.5% and 10.5% respectively.
The Bank calculates common equity tier 1 CAR, tier 1 CAR and CAR in accordance
with the Capital Measures and other relevant regulations, and submits quarterly
reports to the CBIRC as required.
The principal forms of capital are included in the following balances on the balance
sheet: paid-in capital, capital reserve, other comprehensive income, surplus
reserve, general risk reserve and retained earnings.
The on-balance-sheet risk weighted assets are calculated using different risk
weights, which are determined by the risk of specific assets, counterparties,
markets and other relevant aspects, as well as qualified collateral and guarantees.
The off-balance-sheet exposures are calculated using similar methodology and
adjusted according to the nature of the contingent losses. The counterparty credit
risk weighted assets for derivative transactions include the risk-weighted assets for
counterparty default risks and the risk-weighted assets for the credit value
adjustment. The risk-weighted assets for market risks are calculated using
Standardised Approach. The risk-weighted assets for operational risks are
calculated using the Basic Indicator Approach.
The Bank complied with the regulatory capital requirements during the year.
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Risk management (continued)
(7)

Capital management (continued)
As at 31 December, the Bank's capital adequacy ratios were calculated as follows:
Common equity tier 1 capital
- Paid-in capital
- Capital reserve
- Other comprehensive income
- General risk reserve
- Surplus reserve and retained
earnings
Common equity tier 1 capital
Common equity tier 1 capital deductions:
- Intangible assets
- Unrealized gains and losses due to
changes in own credit risk on fair
valued liabilities
Net common equity tier 1 capital

2019

2018

10,727,000,000
11,433,150
133,164,826
2,556,938,702

10,727,000,000
12,873,201
77,940,334
2,087,623,768

10,333,575,767

9,406,319,056

23,762,112,445

22,311,756,359

(322,380,652)
69,299,581

(122,120,097)
(7,070,208)

23,509,031,374

22,182,566,054

-

-

23,509,031,374

22,182,566,054

1,011,994,573

378,725,871

-

-

24,521,025,947

22,561,291,925

Credit risk-weighted assets
Market risk-weighted assets
Operation risk-weighted assets

129,759,652,700
13,934,438,800
11,832,675,000

114,345,992,900
18,731,064,586
10,665,731,300

Total risk-weighted assets

155,526,766,500

143,742,788,786

Common equity tier 1 capital
adequacy ratio

15.1%

15.4%

Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio

15.1%

15.4%

Capital adequacy ratio

15.8%

15.7%

Additional tier 1 capital
Net tier 1 capital
Tier 2 Capital:
- Surplus allowance for impairment
losses
Tier 2 capital deduction
Net total capital
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Risk management (continued)
(8)

Internal audit management
(a)

Internal audit
Internal Audit (IA) reports to the subordinate Audit Committee of the Board.
IA is an independent function whose primary role is to help the Board and
Executive Management to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of
the Bank. IA executes this by risk assessing the organisation and its
activities (including outsourced activities and all legal entities). This risk
assessment, together with audits required or expected by regulators, allow
IA to formulate and execute an annual plan of audits and reviews (the “Plan”)
to form an opinion on the control environment. During the reporting period,
IA conscientiously undertook its duties and acted the role of "the third line of
defence" to strengthen the risk prevention and control, according to the Plan
approved by the Audit Committee.

(b)

Carry out the Plan and supervise the rectifications
During the reporting period, the Bank accomplished 31 audit projects.
Among them, 19 are branch audits, sub-branch audits or spot checks
covering Tianjin, Hangzhou, Chongqing, Ningbo, Chengdu, Shanghai,
Nanchang, Wuhan, Suzhou, Zhuhai, Beijing, Xiamen, Dalian, Guangzhou,
Qingdao, Shenyang, Changsha and Hohhot branches. The other 12 projects
are thematic audits covering Credit Management, Financial Crime
Compliance, Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone, Incident, Problem, Business
Continuity Management and Disaster Recovery, Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process, Loan Risk Categorisation, Outsourcing Management,
Data Centre, Projects, Liquidity and Market Risk Management, etc.
During the reporting period, the control weaknesses identified by IA mainly
involved process design, system design, staff conduct and operation
execution. IA continuously tracks those Very High risk, High risk and Medium
risk audit issues till the completion of the rectifications. The Head of Audit
regularly presents the rectifications status of the audit issues to the Audit
Committee.

(c)

Guarantee the staff resources and fortify professional capabilities
Through continuously recruiting new staff to supplement the audit team, IA
is committed to optimise the internal structure of audit resources and to uplift
the professionalism of audit team. IA holds quarterly thematic forum to
comprehensively enrich the professional skills and knowledges of auditors.

55

Litigation
As at 31 December 2019, the Bank has some lawsuits and arbitrations in its normal
operation and business, but there is no significant impact on the Bank’s financial position
or financial performance.
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56

Comparative figures
Certain items have been restated to conform with the current year’s presentation.

57

Non-adjusting post balance sheet date events
The Bank considers the emergence of the pandemic caused by COVID-19 to be a nonadjusting post balance sheet event. Since the outbreak of CODIV-19 in China in January
2020, the situation is fluid and rapidly evolving. The Bank continues to closely monitor
the situation and evaluate the potential impact to the Bank’s financial performance. Till
the report date, the potential impact to the Bank's financial performance is still under
assessment.
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11. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FROM THE MANAGEMENT
LEVERAGE RATIO
As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s leverage ratio is 8.2%, above the regulatory
minimum of 4%. The detailed calculation is as below:
Unit: RMB million

31 December
2019

31 December
2018

23,509

22,183

244,879

228,314

40,500

35,326

285,379

263,640

8.2%

8.4%

Tier 1 capital
Balance sheet assets after
adjustments
Off balance sheet amounts
after adjustments
Total leverage ratio assets
after adjustments
Leverage ratio
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